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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

1. INTRODUCTION

The Directors of Letshego Faidika Bank Limited (“th
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 w

2. INCORPORATION

e Bank”) submit this report and the audited financial

hich disclose the state financial affairs of the Bank.

The Bank was incorporated in the United Republic of Tanzania under the Companies Act, No.12 of
2002 and is domiciled in Tanzania as a private company limited by shares.

Letshego Faidika Bank Limited
Tanzanian Companies Act, 200
(T) Limited and Letshego Tanza
the banking License to the merged bank (Letshego Faidika Ba

the two mentioned institutions.

3. BANK’S VISION

(LFB) was incorporated as Private Limited Liability Company under the
2. 0n 01 July 2023 as resuit of merging two entities of Letshego Bank
nia Limited (Trading as Faidika), the Bank of Tanzania (BOT) issued
nk Limited) and revoked the licenses of

To be a world-class retail financial services organization meeting the needs of mass and middle-income
individuals and small and medium enterprises.

4. BANK’S MISSION

Improving Lives.

5. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As of 31 December 2024, the Board comprised of 7 directors. The directors who held office during the
year and to the date of this report are:

_@n Name ] Age | Position | Quajificatioﬁ Nationalityr Remarks _\
A Julius Beda independent Non-| MSc  Economics and Tanzanian Joined  05-
Mukoji 66 executive Director | Finance for Development July-2023
@ Adam independent Non- ngwtiiristrég;n Bl\;':.lgreiss Tanzanian Joined 28
| Mayingu 61 executive Director inIT joring ‘ August 2023
3 | Frederick Non-executive Master of Business Motswana Joined_2_3_
L Mmelesi 55 | Director Administration | October 2023
4 Baraka Executive Director Master of Science, Real Tanzanian ‘ Joined 26
| Munisi 47 Estate October 2023
5
| Armando MSc / Laurea Magistrale ‘
Massimiliano Chairman (102/110) in International ltalian Joined 23
Sirolla Politics & Economics,| March 2024
University of Padua, ltaly.
L 53 |
6 |
Executive Master in
Positive Leadership and Joined 23
Kgotso Non-executive Strategies (IE University ‘ Februa
Bannalotlhe Director Madrid Spain), Bcom in| Motswana vy
e 2024
Specialization in Finance
Melbourne, Australia
I I P - |
7 MSc Innovation &l .. .
‘ Ethel Kuuya Indepe.ndenf( Non- Entrepreneurship - HEC Zimbabwea | Joined 25
executive Director - n March 2024
| 45 Paris, Franc J
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

5. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Bank secretary during the year ended 31 December 2024 was Mr. Ladislaus Ragwe
Muhagachi (Tanzanian).

The Bank secretary's role includes providing support and guidance to the Board in matters relating to
governance and ethical practices. He is also responsible for induction programs for new directors,
keeping board members abreast of relevant changes in legislation and governance principles.

6. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Bank is licensed in Tanzania under the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006. The Bank is
engaged in taking deposits on-demand, providing short-term and medium-term credit facilities and other
related banking services.

7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) of Letshego Faidika Bank Limited consists of & non-executive
directors and 1 executive director. One of the directors has a less than 1% indirect interest in the
shares of the Bank. The Board takes overall responsibility for the Bank, including responsibility for
defining the strategy, identifying key risk areas, monitoring the performance of management, business
plans and budgets. The Board is also responsible for ensuring thata comprehensive system of internal
control policies and procedures is operative and in compliance with sound corporate governance
principles. The bank is committed to the principles of effective corporate governance. The Directors
also recognize the importance of integrity, transparency, and accountability. In so doing the Directors,
therefore, confirm that.
» The Board met regularly throughout the year.
They retain full and effective control over the bank and monitor executive management.
The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by different people.
The Chairman of the Board is non-executive.
The Board accepts and exercises responsibility for strategic and policy decisions, the approval
of budgets and the monitoring of performance; and
o The directors bring skills and experience from their spheres of business to complement the
professional experience and skills of the management team.

The Board is required to meet at least four times a year. The Board delegates the day-to-day
management of the business to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), assisted by the Country Executive
Committee. The CEOQ is invited to attend Board meetings and facilitates the effective control of all the
Bank’s operational activities, acting as a medium of communication and coordination between all the
stakeholders. During the year 2024, the Board met 10 times (6 of which were ordinary meetings).

The Board has established a policy and a set of procedures relating to the Directors’ conflicts of
interest. None of the Directors had, during the year, a material interest, directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance with the Bank.

Appointments to the Board are made on merit, and candidates are considered against objective
criteria, having due regard to the benefits of the diversity of the Board. A rigorous selection process is
followed in relation to the appointment of Directors and certain specified senior appointments. Non-
executive Directors are appointed for an initial 3 years’ term and are subject to re-election by
shareholders at each AGM.

Formal induction programs are atranged for newly appointed Directors based on the individual's
needs, skills, and experience. They receive comprehensive guidance from the Bank Secretary on the
Bank’s corporate governance framework and associated policies, as well as their duties as Directors
on the Board.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

Following a period of induction, training and development are provided for each Director with the
support of the Bank Secretary. Non-executive Directors develop and refresh their skills and knowledge
through periodic interactions and briefings with senior management of the Bank’s businesses and
functions.

All non-executive directors may seek independent professional advice in connection with their role as
a director and may have access to the advice and services of the Bank Secretary. The Board maintains
regular dialogue with analysts and investors and considers it very important to inform shareholders
and investors about the Bank’s financial performance. The Bank strives to continuously publish all
relevant information to the market in a timely, effective, and non-discriminatory manner.

The Bank is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. The directors also
recognize the importance of integrity, transparency, and accountability. During the year 2024, the
Board constituted 3 sub-committees for improving corporate governance by delegating specific tasks
from the mainboard to a smaller group and harnessing the contribution of non-executive directors.
These sub-committees are the Audit and Risk Committee, Remuneration Committee (REMCO) and
Credit Committee and are constituted and chaired by non-executive directors.

The table below shows the number of Board meetings held during the year and the attendance by
directors: The Board is required to meet at least four times a year. The Board delegates the day-to-
day management of the business to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), assisted by the Country
Management Committee. The CEO is Executive Director and aftends Board meetings and facilitates
the effective control of all the Bank’s operational activities, acting as a medium of communication and
coordination between all the stakeholders. During the year 2024, the Board met 10 times (6 of which
were ordinary meetings).

No. Name of Director Main Board 4‘
1 Ethel Kuuya 5/6
2 Julius Beda Mukoji 6/6
3 Armando Sirolla 5/6
4 Baraka Munisi 6/6
15 Frederick Mmelesi . 6/6
6 Adam Mayingu 5/6 ]
7 | Kgotso Bannalotlhe 5/6

Note: Director Ethel Kuuya and Director Armando Sirolla attended 5 of 6 meetings as they joined the
bank in March 2024.

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for.

» Overseeing the financial reporting process, safeguards asset and ensure operation of adequate

systems, control process.

o Ensure corporate accountability and management of associated risks combined assurance and

integrated reporting.

o Review and assesses the integrity of the risk control systems and ensure the risk policies and

strategies are effectively managed.

e« Advise on current and potential risk exposures of the Bank: the Bank’s risk management
framework; the future risk strategy of the Bank, including strategy for capital and liquidity
management and promoting a risk awareness culture in the Bank, alongside established policies

and procedures.
o Review compliance with applicable laws.

« Recommends to the board for the appointments of external auditors and oversight of the external

-auditor’s process and results thereof.
o Approves annual internal and externai audit plans.
Monitor the ethical conduct of the Bank.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

Audit and Risk Committee (Continued)

This committee met 3 times during the year all with full attendance except the Committee meeting of
Q3 2024 which was impacted by a lack of Quorum following the end of tenure of new Members of the
Committee. The Board Audit and Risk Committee is comprised of the following members:

\ No. | Name —rNationality Qualification | Meeting
Y | E—— ‘_ 1 = | Attendance
1 Julius Beda ‘ TanzanianJi MSc Economics and Finance for Development | 3/3
B S R E ) A — -
2 Kgotso ‘ Motswana | Executive Master in Positive Leadership and | 3/3
Bannalotlhe Strategies (IE University Madrid Spain), BCom in
| |1 | Specialization in Finance Melbourne Australia___|_

Performance evaluation and reward

The Bank’s performance and reward approach ensure remuneration structures are balanced and is
designed to drive sustainable performance, by ensuring that reward programs support our business
strategy and are both supportive of, and aligned to, sound remuneration practices. Individual rewards
and incentives are linked directly to the performance and behavior of the employees, the performance
of their respective business units, and the interests of shareholders. Details on the remuneration of
the key management personnel are disclosed in Note 35 (c) to the financial statements.

Ethical behavior

We are committed to high standards of ethical behavior and operate a zero-tolerance approach to
bribery and corruption, which we consider unethical and contrary to good corporate governance. The
Bank has strong whistleblowing policies and procedures in the place which staff are periodically trained
as part of induction and ongoing development. It is the utmost responsibility of all staff within the Bank
to comply with the Bank’s Code of Conduct.

Business ethics and organizational integrity

The Bank’s code of conduct embeodies its values and reflects its commitment to operating responsibly
and ethically with high standards of integrity. It provides a comprehensive description of the
employees’ responsibilities towards customers, other employees, businesses, and society. The code
of conduct is designed to empower employees and enable effective decision-making at all levels of
our business according to defined ethical principles.

Risk management and internal control

The Board ensures that the Bank has sound risk management and an internal control system that is
appropriate to its activities. The risk management and internal control systems are based on the Bank’s
corporate values, ethics guidelines, and principles for sustainability and corporate social responsibility
(“CSR"). lt is the responsibility of the management to ensure that adequate internal control systems
are developed and maintained on an ongoing basis to provide reasonable assurance regarding:

« Operational effectiveness and efficiency;

« Safeguarding of the Bank’s assets;

o Reliability of accounting records;

« Responsible behaviors towards all stakeholders

» Compliance with applicable laws and regulations; and

« Business continuity.

In order to ensure the internal controls, remain adequate, the Bank has a fully-fledged Risk and
Compliance function that coordinates and oversees the implementation of enterprise-wide risk
management framework within the Bank. The audit committee on behalf of the Board assesses issues
related to financial review and internal control, and the external audit of Bank’s accounts.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

The Board ensures that the Bank is capable of producing reliable annual reports and that the external
auditor's recommendations are given thorough consideration. During the year 2024, internal control
systems were assessed by the Board and were found to be at an acceptable level.

Financial reporting and auditing

The Bank publishes its quarterly financial statements within thirty days after the end of the quarter and
publishes the annual audited financial statements within fifteen days after approval of the Board but
not later than one hundred and five days after the end of the financial year as required by the “Banking
and Financial Institutions (Disclosures) Regulations, 2014".

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, including the Financial Statements in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board, the Companies Act, 2002, and Bank of Tanzania laws and regulations. In preparing these
financial statements, the directors are required to:

« Adopt the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to do so.
« Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; and
« Make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

The external auditor presented the result of the audit to the audit committee and the Board in the
meeting dealing with the annual financial statements, including presenting any material changes in the
Bank’s accounting principles and significant accounting estimates and reported on whether the
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank.

8. DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for services rendered by the Directors of the Bank for the year ended 31 December
2024 was TZS 211.81 million (2023: TZS 272.53 miillion). Refer to Note 35 (c) for further details.

9. OPERATING STRUCTURE

The Bank provides a wide range of products which suit the needs of different segments of the market,
through our business divisions. We are transforming our digital presence, providing simpler, seamless
interactions through digital platforms while sustaining extensive customer reach through our leading
branch network and alternative channels.

Products and services offered

The Bank has grown to become innovative and preferred financial services partner supported by
uniquely and updated services like agency banking, mobile banking and ATM solutions. The most
services provided by Letshego Faidika Bank Limited are offering loans to Government employees
(DAS), small and medium enterprise loans, deposit taking (retail corporate and informal savings —
Timiza), insurance brokerage service through a network of 5 deposit taking branches, and 17 Service
Centers, and more than 120 satellite sales points with 3 ATMs. Additionally, Letshego Faidika Bank
Limited provides VISA service which include acceptance and payments. The main goal of the Bank is
to improve peoples’ lives, that's why it expands its presence in the community to ensure that, most of
the community get access to all products and services which are being provided by the Bank.
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LETSHEGO EAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

10. OUR BUSINESSIOPERAT|NG MODEL

The Bank plays 2 key role in connecting the providers and users of capital. We recognize the role we
play in society, and our success as @ pusiness has always been closely linked to the progress of the
people, communities, and businesses Weé serve. We aspire to grow and deliver value for all our
stakeholders. For us, value is best illustrated in the quality of lives of our shareholders, our people and
the community around us. In driving value for our stakeholders, weé anchor our a

) ctions on a firm
foundation of defined strond values.

Our mission is t0 provide competitive and innovative financial solutions through digital transformation
to achieve a distinctive customer experience while caring for our people and delivering a sustainablé
contribution to society. Our purpose is to transform lives through financial sector innovation, intuitive

action, and sustainable business.

We invest in people, technology. and processes to deliver value in a responsible and sustainable
manner. Therefore, through innovation and strategic investments, we continue to expand our delivery
channels to deepen access 10 financial services. We have a robust plan o drive financial inclusion
with a clear aim to serve the underserved communities and include the lower segment of the market
into the financial ecosystem.

Resources and inputs employed to provide service to customers:
Financial resources

We deploy our financial resources to help our customers and clients achieve their goals. Our good
financial position and growth are 2 result of our disciplined approach towards raising, lending and
managing our financial resources. it includes customer deposits, shareholder equity, retained earnings
and external porrowings among others. Our shareholder and debt funding give us a strong financial
capital base that supports our operations and fund growth. Financial capital includes the funds our
customers/ stakeholders invest with us.

Our financial capital supports our operations and fund growth. Our investors, both debt and equity
played a big part in the makeup of our financial capital to execute the Bank’s strategy. In 2024 thé
bank maintained to leverage on our palanced mix of customer deposits, debt, and equity to rur; our
operations and execute our strategy. The Bank maintained a solid capital base and diversified funding
sources that enabled us to provide banking solutions competitively across the markets we operate in.
Bank accessed fund at the competitive rates. so as to efficiently create and maximize shareholder
value.

{n 2024, our total equity increased by 277% to TZS 80,444.11 million from TZS 21,319.67 million while
our total porrowings were fully repaid during the year. Through our wide distribution networks and
strong financial base, we managed to atiract and mobilize 2 palanced mix of deposits to further support
our lending activities. Our customer deposits Increased by 2% 10 TZS 10,133.69 million from TZS
0,904.64 million.

Our retained earnings form part of the Bank’s financial capital used in the execution and growth of
strategic investments. Accumulated losses stood at TZS 37,497,424 million at the end of December
2024 (2023; TZS 46,089.30 million), this decrease in accumulated losses in contributed by profit
generated in 2024 of TZS 8,5691.87 million.

Human resources

We deliver success through 2 purpose—driven and inclusive culture. Our peopte are at the heart of our
success. Their diverse skill sets, expertise and industry knowledge constitute our human capital. We
further enhance our human capital through continuous training and development programmes. Our
focus on developing @ skilled and motivated workforce enables us o acquire, serve and retain our
customers. We have an engaged and motivated workforce that is guided by a clear vision and
anchored in strong values. We are focused on embedding a culture of continuous development which
increases competitiveness and investment in the development of skills required by employees t<’) serve
the digital customer of the future.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

10. OUR BUSINESS/OPERATING MODEL (Continued)
Resources and inputs employed to provide service to customers (Continued)
Intellectual resources

The adoption of data analytics and emergent technologies enables us to increase operational
efficiencies. The knowledge and expertise incorporated within our systems, processes and procedures
and the equity built in the Bank’s brand constitute our intellectual capital. We have invested in strong
brand and subsidiary businesses, strategic partnerships and innovative products and solutions that we
offer to our customers. We have made commendable progress in digital adoption with a focus on
automation, which is a key driver of delivering our digital strategy.

Social and relationship resources

In our engagements with key stakeholders, we continuously strive to deliver a meaningful value
exchange and manage their expectations. We value the views of our stakeholders because they play
a significant role in shaping our response to business and societal issues. Be it with our customers,
trade partners and merchants or communities, we take a holistic approach to sustainable value
creation by nurturing our long-standing relationships and building new ones.

Our business activities

We offer a comprehensive range of financial services to individuals, Small and Medium-sized
Enterprises (SMEs) and corporations. Our integrated business model is designed to address the
widespread needs covering alf market segments by responding to the rapidly changing world.

Our delivery channels

* We have 5 deposit taking branches, 17 Service Centers, and more than 80 satellite sales points
across mainland Tanzania.

» Mobile Banking a Digital loans Services

e VISA cards

e Banking Agents — 34 agents spread across the country to complement our service points.

¢ ATM — we are part of Umoja switch giving our customers access to over 250 ATMs and several
merchants.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

10. OUR BUSINESS/OPERATING MODEL (Continued)

Resources and inputs employed to provide service to customers (Continued)

What we offer/Output

¢ Lending — We have variant of loan products available to customers and clients to support
their needs, loans to Government employees (DAS), Mtaji Afya, Mtaji elimu, Mtaji nyumba,
Insurance premium financing (IPF), digital loans through Yass and Mpesa, and SMES loans
specifically designed to address the need of small and medium enterprise.

o Deposit savings — We provide deposit savings solutions i.e. current account, saving accounts and

term deposit.

« Mobile deposit — We enable customers to conveniently deposit money electronically by
transferring from all major mobile money operators (MNOs), moreover, in partnership with Airtel
Money we are enabling customers to save money digitally while earning attractive interest.

e Payments and transactions — Through our Payment cards (Visa and Umoja) and our Mobile
Banking Solution, our customers can make payments to domestic and international merchants.

« Banc assurance — We provide brokerage service to 7 insurance companies offering a wide range
of covers including life, general and medical insurance.

Outcomes

Stakeholders

Outcome

We deliver value to all our stakeholders and fulfill a vital role in the economies in which we operate.

Employees

A workplace where employees can be productive and achieve
their potential.

Performance underpins the rationale for recognition and reward.
Self-led development and an opportunity for career progression.

Customers and clients

Regulators

Innovative, efficient cost-effective banking solutions that meet
their needs.

Improved access to markets and financial services including
access to information and advice.

5 branches, 4 remotes sales centers, 393 agencies banking and
1 cali center for customer engagement.

Supporting financial goals for our customers and clients with
products and services delivered through a superior offering.

Continuous streamlining with all required regulations »
A stable financial services sector through engagements with
regulators.

Society

Providing support to our communities, and access to social and
environmental financing to address societal needs.

Increase access to, and funding for education, health and
housing solutions

investors/ shareholders

Delivering attractive and sustainable shareholder returns on their
investment
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

11. FACTORS THAT IMPACTED OUR ABILITY TO CREATE VALUE

Our operating environment is characterized by increased competition, disruptive technologies,
changing consumer behavior and regulatory and policy changes. Within the context of our current
strategic, cultural and digital journey, we manage the following material matters.

RISK/IMPACT ON VALUE

ISSUE CREATION OUR RESPONSE
| Loss of market share coupled -
| . with pressure on revenues and | Delivering innovative products and
ncreasing : - . ; .
competition possible loss of revenue if our | services through an increasingly
P offerings don’t remain | automated and digitized environment.
competitive.
o Digital transformation is | Improving our partnerships to drive
Technologies and | changing the way we do | greater alignment between our business

digital adoption

business, from client onboarding
and products sales to servicing.

and technology partners to ensure we
remain agile in the face of change.

Rising stakeholder
expectations

Stakeholders’ sentiments can
impact our reputation and affect
the cost and availability of
funding that is required to drive
long-term performance.

Increased engagements with
stakeholders to best understand their
expectations to incorporate into our
strategic planning. Adopting integrated
reporting to increase transparency on our
value creation process.

Ongoing regulatory

Growing compliance costs which
may have to be passed on to

“Allocating a material proportion of our

investment to regulatory compliance and
risk prevention initiatives. Engagement
with policy makers and communities to

iﬂgn‘gify customers and ultimately impact | advocate for appropriate regulatory
shareholder returns. reform. Maintaining constructive and
proactive  relationships  with  key

regulators.

Main trends and factors likely to affect future prospects

The banking industry is experiencing a fundamental shift, driven by new competition from FinTech and
Telco companies, a cultural shift, continuous change in regulations and compliance, and disruptive
technologies. The coming out of FinTech/non-bank start-ups is changing the competitive landscape in
financial services, driving traditional institutions to rethink the way they do business. These and other
banking industry challenges can be resolved by new technology which has caused disruptions.
However, the transition from the old systems to the innovative solutions has not always been an easy
one. That said, banks need to embrace digital transformation as the only way to survive in the current
landscape.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

11. FACTORS THAT IMPACTED OUR ABILITY TO CREATE VALUE (Continue)
Main trends and factors likely to affect prospects (Continued)
Increasing competition

The competition posed by FinTechs, which mainly targets some of the most profitable areas in financial
services, is substantial. It is expected that these Fintech and start-ups would divert revenue from
traditional banks and financial Institutions. These new industry entrants are forcing many financial
institutions to strive for partnerships and/or acquisition opportunities as a measure to survive. For the
traditional bank to continue and maintain a competitive advantage, it has to learn from FinTechs, by
providing simplified and intuitive customer experience.

Cultural shift

In the digital world, there is no opportunity for manual processes and procedures. Banks need to think
of technology-based resolutions to banking industry challenges. As a result, it is important that banks
and financial institutions institute a culture of innovation, in which technology is leveraged to optimize
existing processes and procedures for maximum efficiency. The cultural shift towards new
technologies is reflective acceptance of digital transformation.

Regulatory compliance

Regulatory compliance has become one of the most significant banking industry challenges as a direct
result of the growing number of regulations that banks must comply with; compliance can significantly
strain resources and is often dependent on the ability to correlate data from disparate sources. Faced
with severe consequences for non-compliance, banks have incurred additional cost and risk in order
to stay up to date on the latest regulatory changes and to implement the controls necessary to satisfy
those requirements. Overcoming regulatory compliance challenges requires banks to foster a culture
of compliance within the organization, as well as implement formal compliance structures and systems.

Rising expectations

Customers of today’s world are very smart and more informed than ever before and expect a high
degree of personalized services and convenience out of their banking experience and as a result, an
increased expectation of digitized experiences. Millennials have led the charge to digitization whereby
they prefer to interact with brands via social media and found that they make up the larger percentage
of mobile and internet banking users. As a result of this trend, banks can expect future generations to
be more users of mobile banking rather than visiting physical branches. The challenge for banks is to
maintain a hybrid banking model which can serve both the older and younger generations.

Continuous innovation

For the banks to sustain themselves in the current world, they require continuous innovation which
helps them to stay competitive and address market demands while improving customer experience.
Innovation stems from insight, and insight tends to be discovered through customer interactions and
continuous analysis. Banks need to build advanced analytics capability to maximize the utilisation of
the data asset in revenue growth, risk/fraud control and efficiency (financial control and operational
cost). The banks should also continuously promote and drive agile culture throughout the organisation
in order to manage the speed, scale and value of digital transformation.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

12. OUR STRENGTH

For more than eight years, we have been serving our customers with strong conviction and diligence,
understanding that our survival as a business is tied to their individual growth and collective prosperity.

Brand

Our brand helps foster a strong relationship of trust with our customers and clients. Our story of
progress is centered around supporting economic transformation and building sustainable livelihoods
for our customers. Our long-term vision is to drive impact across all our markets through financial
sector innovation while improving lives.

Technology and infrastructure

Our technology and infrastructure capabilities drive seamless customer experiences and support
strong resiliency. We have invested in technology which enables competitive product development,
the implementation of reliable techniques for control of risks and enhancement of digital channels
which help the bank to reach geographically faraway and diversified markets. It is projected that during
the year 2024 the bank will continue to invest massively in terms of strengthening the digital platform.

Operations and governance

Our risk management, governance and controls help ensure customer and client outcomes are
delivered in the right way. The Bank Risk Management Framework forms the Bank's integral part of
corporate governance. It defines the Bank's high-level governance structure; it documents the key
responsibilities and accountabilities that are in place to manage risks inherent in the Bank’s business
and operations. The framework also outlines controls, processes, and structures to support proper
implementation of Risk Management Strategies. This control framework is intended for use in
dissemination of risk management objectives and strategies to all stakeholders in the group.

Effective risk management equips the Bank to respond actively to market volatilities and uncertainties
using well analyzed risk-based information to enable more effective decision-making. In turn,
increased capacity and demonstrated ability to assess, communicate and manage risk builds trust and
confidence in customers and the general public.

Employee engagement

The bank ensures employees are committed and connected, which addresses the needs of our
stakeholders. Employee engagement has appeared as a critical instrument of our business success
in today's competitive banking environment. The human resource department ensures high levels of
engagement of staff which promotes retention of talent, nurture customer loyalty and improve bank
performance and stakeholders value. Our employee engagement is a key link to customer satisfaction,
protects bank reputation and overall stakeholder value.

Customer focus

The Bank maintains a customer centric focus, innovating business models that meet the customer
demands and leverage cutting edge technology to find solutions for customer needs. We have
enhanced the capabilities of our core banking system and alternative channels and ensure our footprint
presence across the country. The banking sector has embraced technology to serve customers more
efficiently.
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13. OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

The operating environment remained stable amidst the turbulent dynamics of the year. The banking
sector remained stable, profitable, adequately capitalized, with a sufficient level of liquidity and
improved asset quality. The sector remained resilient to internal and external shocks and continued to
grow in terms of deposits and assets, supported by a favorable macroeconomic environment,
regulatory and supervisory measures. The government embarked on some measures to stabilize the
economy and record a good performance in 2024, all things considered. Digital banking services
continue to expand driven by increasing financial inclusion and mobile penetration rate while the banks
slowed down significantly the branch network expansion.

Macro and micro economic overview

Tanzania has sustained relatively high growth this year, bolstered by strengthened private
consumption and recovered exports as global restrictions has been eased GDP Growth is expected
to strengthen over the next two years, assuming the external envirohment improves. The real GDP
growth rate is projected to reach 6 percent in 2025 and average about 5.5 percent over the medium
term as exports and domestic demand further improves. The GDP forecast can be affected by the
continued flag downside risks to our 2025 growth forecast should the regional tension, middie east
tension escalates further also the major super power policy shifts. “Growth is expected to be driven by
agriculture, transport, construction, public and private investment, reforms to improve business
conditions, favorable weather, and a rebound in tourism,” the Bank of Tanzania projected.

The Annual Headline Inflation Rate at the end of December 2024 maintained a consistent run at 3%
similar to the same period last year. During 2023/24, policymakers across the globe were confronted
with a challenging economic environment resulting from the middle-east tension, climate change.
These global shocks disrupted the supply chain, leading to high commodity prices, affected supply of
USD and major shifts in depreciation of some currency and inflation. To address the increase in
inflation, BOT pursued a less accommodative monetary policy, which focused on striking a balance
between the objective of containing inflation while safeguarding growth and financial stability.

In January 2024, BOT announced it had transitioned to an interest rate-based monetary policy,
effective the same month. The policy shift moves away from the previous focus on controlling the
money supply, aligning Tanzania’'s economic management with regional practices and international
standards. The move aims for enhanced economic stability and  growth.

Environmental, Social and Governance Reports

The Bank recognizes Environmental, Social and Governance variables that affect its financial position
and operating performance. The Bank refers to these variables as ESG related risks. The Bank is
committed to driving a distinct ESG program that is consistent with its overall business strategy and
Enterprise Risk Management Framework. We understand that ESG may affect stakeholders including
our clients, teammates, communities and shareholders, we also understand how we manage ESG
issues, and we have better insight into how we are living our values and delivering on our purpose {o
drive responsible growth.

Regulatory environment

During the year 2024 the banking environment remained sound, stable and resilient with adequate
capital to support economic activities. The Bank of Tanzania (BOT) continued to strengthen risk
management practices in the financial sector by implementing various policies and regulatory reforms
to safeguard the stability of the industry including directing banks with capital inadequate ratios to
implement capital restoration plans and adhering to the regulatory requirements.

The Bank of Tanzania (BOT) has introduced new guidelines for banks and financial institutions
regarding fees and charges. These guidelines require that all lending fees be reasonable, transparent,
and reflect the value provided to customers, with insurance fees limited to actual premium costs and
certain fees prohibited. Financial institutions must also establish internal policies to govern fee
structures, with penalties for non-compliance. Additionally, BOT has mandated the use of the Credit
Reference Bureau (CRB) to assess customer creditworthiness and improve risk management
practices, aiming to reduce non-performing loans (NPLs)
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13. OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (Continued)
Regulatory environment (Continued)

Additionally, BOT has launched the Fintech Regulatory Sandbox, a controlled environment for testing
new financial products and services, which provides an opportunity for LFB to pilot innovative digital
offerings. Another significant change is the amendment to the Social Security Act, which now allows
social security members to use their benefit entittements as collateral for home mortgages. This
development presents an opportunity for LFB to offer new mortgage products tailored to customers
using social security entitiements. Collectively, these regulatory changes are expected to enhance
LFB's operational efficiency, expand product offerings, and improve risk management practices. The
bank is committed to adhering to these regulations while seeking new avenues for product innovation
and increased financial inclusion.

Political environment

The Bank is operating under a stable political environment in which it operates to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and meet stakeholders’ needs. Overall stabilization and growth of the bank
and economy at large. Also, a stable political environment has promoted the increase in foreign
investment and the domestic investments and operations through fair and stable tax regime and
policies induced by the government leading to the increase of production capacity.

Competitive position

The banking landscape continues to face competition from other players, mainly Mobile Network
Operators (MNOs) and FinTech with technology disruptions becoming a norm. Similarly, the mergers
and acquisitions being witnessed in the banking industry will likely create entities that will increase
competition in the sector.

The Bank will continue to leverage its competitive advantage through customer centricity, improved
technology and network committed workforce to deliver value to all stakeholders.

Market forces

The Bank serves a diverse customer base with changing needs and ever-increasing demand for more
value and convenience. Technology is highly impacting the banking landscape; clients expect 24/7
banking wherever they are in the world- the same access offered by other service providers. They also
expect constant innovation.

The Bank maintains a customer centric focus, innovating business models that meet the customer
demands and leverage cutting edge technology to find solutions for customer needs. We have
enhanced the capabilities of our core banking system and alternative channels and ensure our footprint
presence across the country and in our cross-border operations to foster excellent customer
experience.

Human rights

The Bank complies with all regional and international human rights instruments. We also promote
human rights through our employment policies and practices, through our supply chain and through
the responsible use of our products and service in accordance with the requirements of the
Constitution of Tanzania.

Health

The Bank is committed to conducting our business in compliance with ali applicable health and safety
laws and regulations (the Occupational Safety Human Resources Policy and Health Act.No.5 of 2003.
The Bank strive to provide a safe and healthy work environment to avoid adverse impact and injury to
its employees and customers by taking responsibilities towards the safety of everyone on our
premises, including employees, contractors, customers, visitors and members of the public, and
ensures that they are not exposed to risks that may compromise their Health and Safety.
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14. STAKEHOLDERS NEEDS AND INTERESTS

As a financial services provider we are deeply connected and committed to the environment we
operate in and the societies we serve. Our ability to deliver value is dependent on our relationships
and the contributions and activities of our stakeholders. We engage in dialogue with our stakeholders
to understand their needs and seek to meet their expectations to create value for them and for the
Bank.

Stakeholders Stakeholders’ needs and expectations

Employees - Career development and advancement opportunities

- Challenging work, with opportunities to make a difference

- An empowering and enabling environment that embraces diversity and
inclusivity.

- Fair remuneration, effective performance management, and recognition

- Asafe and healthy work environment

Customers - Innovative financial solutions and services
- Convenient access to banking services through digital channels.
- Excellence in client service.
- Value-for-money banking that is competitive and transparent in pricing.

_Suppliers - Fair bidding and timely payments
| Shareholders/ - Continuous engagement to inform their investment decisions. o
investors
Regulators and | - Compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements o
policy makers - Being a responsible taxpayer in all jurisdictions where we conduct business.
- Active participation and contribution to industry and regulatory working groups.
Society - Providing access to relevant financial solutions that help to achieve desired
outcomes for individuals, their families, their businesses and their
communities.

- Influencing its stakeholders to act responsibly in environmental, social and
governance matters

- Letshego partnering with the community to address common social and

| environmental issues to build a thriving society.

15. OUR OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGY

Letshego Faidika Bank Limited objective has been prepared with the view of achieving more revenue,
growing the business in terms of Iending activities and ultimately improving shareholders value and
life of the people, the objectives have been developed out of transformational strategy. Letshego
Faidika Bank Limited turn-around agenda is driven by transformational strategic conversations namely
product diversification, digitalization, enterprise agility, geographical rebalancing, and sustainable
stakeholder value. The bank will continue to maintain its core objectives of improving the lives of
ordinary Tanzanians through the provision of financial services and products; improving our IT
system’s performance and security and improve the quality of customer service while being an agile
provider of financial services in the country.

In perspective, the bank continued to be resilient, Letshego Faidika bank Limited continue to
strengthen our customer services, stakeholder engagement, portfolio quality management, I1CT
infrastructure, resource optimization, capacity building, we aspire to deploy bold strategies to address
productivity and cost levers.

Letshego Faidika Bank Limited Strategic Business objective is therefore to be a systemic bank in
Tanzania and move to mid-tier bank within the next three years i.e., Top 20 in ranking by profitability,
total assets -and deposit market share. Letshego Faidika bank Limited to become among- Top 20
financial institution serving over 50,000 customers.
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16. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHAREHOLDING
The bank’s capital structure for the year under review is shown below:
Authorised share capital

During the year, the authorised share capital of the bank was TZS 67,408,974,219 divided into 100,000
consisting of 588,891 ordinary shares (2023: TZS 588,891) and non-cumulative preference shares
85,199 (2023: TZS 85,199).

Called up and fully paid share capital

588,891 (2023: TZS 588,891) ordinary shares of TZS 100,000 each amounting to TZS 58,889,074,219
(2023: TZS 588,891) as at end of year 2024 and 85,199 (2023: 85,199) preferences share of TZS
100,000 amount to TZS 8,519,900,000 (2023: TZS 8,519,900,000) giving the total of TZS
67,408,974,219 (2023 TZS 53,488,892,180).

Non-cumulative preference shareholders are given priority on receiving dividend over ordinary share.
Holders of non-cumulative preference shares are not entitled to carry over the dividend for the year the
Bank has not declared to issue dividend.

17. MANAGEMENT

The structure of the bank is comprised of the below departments:
« Finance department
o Distribution and Business Development Department
e Operations department
« People and Culture department
« Internal Audit department
e Risk department

18. RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Bank are set out on page 37. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Bank
reported a Profit after Tax of TZS 8,591.88 million (2023: a loss after tax of TZS 15,020.27 million).
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.
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19. SHAREHOLDERS OF THE BANK

Letshego Africa Holdings Limited is a shareholder of the bank holding 100% of the shares.

Country of Number of

Name Value of Shares

Incorporation shares

TZS'000
Letshego Africa Holdings Limited - Ordinary Botswana 591,689 59,168,900
shares
Letshego Africa Holdings Limited - Botswana 85,199 8.519.900
Preference Shares
Andrew Okai Botswana o 1 - 100
Total share capital 676,889 67,688,900

20. PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Financial performance

The Bank’s financial results for the year are set out on page 37 of the financial statements. During the
year ended 31 December 2024, the bank recorded a profit before tax of TZS 9,089.74 million compared
to a loss before tax of TZS 7,017.36 miilion for the year ended 31 December 2023. The main drivers of
the results for the year are highlighted betow:

Net interest income

Net interest income (interest income less interest expenses) increased by 120% from TZS 13,351.75
million to TZS 29,374.76 million resulting from significant increase in the bank loan book and overall
businesses volume during the year after the Bank merged with Letshego Tanzania Limited t/a Faidika
effectively from 01 July 2023.

Non-interest income

Non-interest income includes the following: fees, commission, and foreign exchange gains/losses. Net
non-interest income decreased to TZS 889.01 million compared to TZS 1,002.12 million earned in
2023. The decrease was contributed by a decreased volume of transactional banking and loan
disbursement.

impairment losses

In 2024, impairment expense decreased to TZS 5,786 million from TZS 5,964 million in 2023. The
decrease in provision during the year was significantly contributed by the increase in recoveries from
the written-off portfolio.

Bank operating expenses

Total operating expenses include personnel costs, depreciation of property and equipment,
amortization of intangible assets, and general administrative expenses. During the year bank operating
expenses decreased by TZS 23.90 million from TZS 15,411.43 million in 2023 to TZS 15,387.53 million
in 2024. The decrease in operating expenses was significantly contributed to by cost optimization
measures.

Key performance ratios

The key performance ratios of the bank are indicated below:

No. | Particulars ' - 2024 zozs:i
1. | Return on total assets _ 8% (13%) |

2. | Return on equity - 11% | (70%) |
| 3. ‘ Non-interest expense to interest income | 52% | 155&]
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20. PERFORMANCE REVIEW (Continued)

Financial position
The bank’s financial position is set out on page 38 of the financial statements, with comparative figures
for the current and previous year.

Cash and bank balances with Bank of Tanzania

Cash and bank balances with Bank of Tanzania decreased to TZS 1,414.45 million from TZS 1,962.52
million in 2023. The decrease is due to increase in operation and activities at Bank of Tanzania account
following the merger.

Other bank balances
Other bank balances increased to TZS 24,891.04 million from TZS 14,386.72 million in 2023, due to
investment in short term fixed deposits and coliections from loans and advances.

Loans and advances

The gross loans and advances increased to TZS 87,823.264 million in 2024, up from TZS 84,881.598
million in 2023, while net loans and advances grew by 3% (compared to a 417% increase in 2023). The
rise in loans and advances is primarily attributed to the issuance of new loans, following the introduction
of instant loans in partnership with Mobile Network Operators (MNOs).

Property and equipment

The carrying value of property and equipment decreased by TZS 654.14 million (67% decrease) from
TZS 976.50 million in 2023 to TZS 322.36 million mainly due to transfer of assets from Letshego
Tanzania Limited t/a Faidika which merged with the bank in 2023. The increase in assets was however
offset by depreciation during the year amounting TZS 804,346 as disclosed in Note 18.

Other assets

Other assets decreased by TZS 3,840.39 million from TZS 6,664.88 million in 2023 to 2,824.48 million
in 2024. The decrease is due 1o the decrease in other receivables due to various transactions done with
the third parties.

Customer deposits

The increase in customer deposits to TZS 10,133.69 mitlion from TZS 9,904.64 million (by 2%) was
mainly driven by the TIMIZA deposit campaign and increase of number of customers after merging with
Faidika.

Other liabilities

Other liabilities have increased to TZS 7,037.15 million from TZS 2,157.89 million in 2023 mainly
attributed by decrease in sundry creditors and accruals.
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20. PERFORMANCE REVIEW (Continued)
Key efficiency ratios (Continued)

Key efficiency ratios
The key performance ratios of the bank during the year are indicated below:

No. | Particulars ' 2024 2023 |
1. | Total capital to total assets 75% 19% |
2. | Non-performing loans to total advances 7.7% 19.9%
4. | Loans to total assets B N 1% 61 %
5. | Deposit growth j ) , 2% 3%

How we delivered KPI set

« Aligned branch operations to the new operating model to fit service demands, increase productivity
and improve controls.

« Embarked on Culture transformation program to align peoples mind delivering required output.
« Conducted HQ and branch processes alignment to optimize resource utilization.

21. FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

The Bank plans to continue to increase its portfolio of clients, both for deposit and loan, and will conduct
a selective expansion of its branches, focusing on value-added customer services, while carefully
managing both costs and risks. Deposit mobilization remained key in 2024 as the bank continued to
strengthen the strategic partnership with Airtel to drive retail mobile savings. The bank is planning to
conduct the deposit mobilization, collection and recovery campaign during the year 2025 which is
projected to grow Timiza deposit and improve on Nonperforming ratio and bank liquidity. During the
year 2025 the bank is planning to introduce digital loans with multiple partners, we will also target retail
deposits, institutional deposits. We will also focus on the improvement of alternative channels to retain
and attract cheap deposits.

During 2025 Letshego Faidika Bank Limited plans to push aggressively for digitalization and open up
for alternative channels in order to increase its portfolio of clients, both for deposit and loan, priority will
be given to digitization of services and partnership with other big players and MNO’s focusing on value-
added customer services, Other key strategic initiatives will be to drive to increase Instant Loan
Penetration in the MNO Sector, increase the base and scope of the Instant loans Subscribers, Launch
of the successfully tested Mpesa Instant loan product, Partnerships' with other key stakeholders Go Live
for the Digital Mall Bilt Payments functionality, Review and Changes on the Digital Mall transaction
charges to increase Non Funded Income, Revamp on the Timiza Akiba product with Airtel Money for
the Digital Saving Product double the Digital Deposits in 2024,Sales Rural Sales Activation Campaigns
to close the performance gap and Recovery campaign for discount allowance to customers (written—off
book).
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21. FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLANS (Continued)

The Bank's aspiration is centered on addressing productivity and cost levers. In 2025, we will put the
customer at the center of what we do by addressing their evolved needs. In addition, we will remain
relevant in the business by responding to the market dynamics. We will create a robust support system
to match the business aspirations and key drivers of growth. We will increase efforts on business
diversification by growing more on Retail banking while focusing on optimization and retention on the
corporate side.

On Retail, we will leverage customer segmentation and profiling to offer solutions relevant to the needs.
In addition, we will adopt volume and risk-based pricing to drive growth through the affordability context.
We will leverage technology and partnerships to drive channel optimization and accessibility.

Our service experience aspiration is to enhance the entire operations value chain through process
simplification and automation. Thus, we will prioritize the delivery of critical technology projects as
enablers and accelerate process reengineering programs. Most paramount, we are committed to
implementing a holistic transformation leading fo the bank of the future. Adapting to a new culture will
drive performance, productivity and profitability. Create technological capabilities to transform how we
operate and offer services, enhancing cyber maturity posture and data protection. Specifically, for 2025,
our strategic direction will strike the right balance between business growth and compliance.

In 2025, the Bank aspirations shall be:

« Increase focus on economic sectors to align the Bank strategies to capture emerging opportunities.

« Enhance compliance oversight to adapt and address regulatory changes.

« Transform and align business models to address changing customers and key stakeholders’ needs.

» Maintain focus on digital transformation and accelerate delivery of digital transformation strategy.

« Accelerate delivery of digital transformation strategy.

s Leverage on the new and existing competitive advantages to attain market leadership.

» Develop bold and digital-based channel distribution strategies to enhance optimization and
accessibility.

« Acquire new and optimize existing partnerships to enhance ability to serve and grow.

o Increase focus on financial inclusion to acquire of new customers through micro-save & micro-
lending.

» Capitalize on results management framework to drive performance and visibility.

¢ Maintain healthy and quality loan portfolio.

« Deliberately, continue to deploy sustainable actions to improve efficiency ratio.

« Accelerate delivery of technology projects to address system challenges.

« Enhance reporting and data availability to enable analytical decision making.

¢ Harness value from people through empowerment and capacity building.

+ Deploy effective support model to match and compliment business priorities.

The Bank’s expectations from the investment made will result in an increase in operational efficiencies,
costs reduction and consequently increase profitability. The transformation targets to build a superior
banking experience and generate value for all stakeholders. To achieve a more prolific performance,
the Bank will harness the opportunities brought about by the transformation initiatives being
implemented.
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21. FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLANS (Continued)

In 2025, the Bank's strategy is to develop new products and services that will fit the recent needs of our
customers to catch up with the technology to help and support our customers in a sustainable way. The
2025 strategy also aims to unlock the full potential of the Bank by entrenching the efficiency of service
and transforming our sales force.

We plan to leverage technology, talent, and opportunities to build a robust proposition for our customers.
Key considerations for us in the new year include sustained expansion of our agency banking business,
seeing that it is a cost-effective avenue through which the Bank can expand its reach to provide access
to financial services for underserved communities in rural areas.

We will also continue to accelerate automation with a view to reducing manual interventions. We
believe that this will enhance efficiency in our delivery service and, in turn, deliver superior experience
for our customers. We are resolving to get closer to our customers more so that we can understand
their pain points and help them achieve their financial goals.

22. PRINCIPAL RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND OPPORTUNITIES/MITIGATIONS

The Bank is committed to meeting stakeholders’ expectations in mitigating risks through an enterprise-
wide risk management framework. The framework aims to ensure that risks are identified, quantified,
managed, and monitored to achieve an optimal risk-reward profile. Our enterprise risk management
framework has well-defined internal structures, adequate processes, systems, and policies, which
monitor and help to mitigate existing and prospective risks or threats of damage, injury, liability, loss
and any other negative occurrence that may arise from external or internal vulnerabilities, and which
may be avoided through preventive action.

The Bank has in place a risk management process where risk management tools have been deployed
to ensure proactive measures are achieved to the largest extent. We strongly believe that preventing
risks enhances shareholder value because it allows us to manage risks proactively and inteiligently,
which maximizes the Bank’s potential for earnings, ensures stability and takes measures to protect the
business against unexpected losses.

Our risk management aims to protect the Bank's solvency through the preservation of high asset quality,
efficient operations and prudent capital management resulting in sustained earnings that augment core
capital, enabling regulatory compliance, enhancing market reputation and stakeholder support.

Principal risk ) Context | Opportunities/Mitigations

Credit risk The risk that arises from unmet | Our credit risk management strategies are
customer obligations, either | based on achieving the right asset quality and
willingly or unwillingly, which results | concentration. To achieve this, credit risk is
in economic loss to the Bank. assessed and managed right from credit

origination to recovery management. Our
assessment methodologies ensure that risks
are clearly articulated, throughout the credit
management life circle.

Liquidity risk | Liquidity risk is the possibility of | The liquidity risk management process is
having a shortfall to earnings or | carried out within the Bank and monitored by
capital arising from the likelihood | the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO)
that the Bank will not have sufficient | includes a day-to-day funding management
cash to meet liquidity demands or | which is managed by monitoring future cash
situations on which it cannot raise | flows to ensure that funding requirements can
enough liquidity in a cost-effective | be met. These include replenishment of funds
manner. as they mature or are loaned to customers.

Market risk The risk of financial loss on | The Bank's Treasury Department where the
earnings or capital arising from | trading and the Asset and Liability
adverse movement in market rates | Management functions reside manages
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'_Pr_incipa_l risk

Compliance
risk

Operational
risk

Strategic risk

Context

| SEre;-tégic

or prices such as interest rates,

foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency,

price and equity investments, all of |

which are exposed to general and
specific market movements and
changes in the level of volatility of
market rates or prices.

Refers to current or prospective risk
to earnings and capital arising from
violations or non-compliance with
laws, rules, regulations,
agreements, prescribed practices,
or ethical standards, as well as from
the  possibility of incorrect
interpretation of effective laws or
regulations.

This is a risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal
processes, or people, or systems,
or from external events.
Operational risk includes
reputation, legal and franchise risks
associated with business practices
or market conduct (e.g., suitability,
appropriateness and disclosure)
that the Bank may undertake with
respect to activities as principal or
as an agent

Opportunities/Mitigations
market risk, and the Risk and Compliance
function independently monitors and reports
on the risk-taking aspects of market risk.

The Bank manages Regulatory Compliance |

Risk through a dedicated Regulatory
Compliance  function  which  monitors
Regulatory changes and its effects to the
business, disseminate the requirements
across the Bank to ensure the business is not
in violation and make changes to Bank’s
policies and procedures affected by changes
in laws and regulations. The function
conducts regulatory conformance tests
across the Bank to detect compliance gaps in
enforcement of regulatory requirements and
reports to the Risk Management Committees
of the Management and the Board, on
Compliance status for the Bank.

For every operational risk identified,
management has developed the control
mechanism for mitigating it which includes
appropriate segregation of duties, dual
control, and reconciliation has been
embedded in each business programs and
operational  procedures are reviewed
periodically. The group also has a self-risk
assessment process and training of staff on
operational risk management which is being
conducted continuously.

risk concerns  the
consequences that occur when the
environment in which decisions that
is hard to implement quickly and
reverse result in an unattractive or
adverse impact. Strategic risk
ultimately has two elements: one is
doing the right thing at the right time
and the other is doing it well.
Strategic risk includes a risk that
the Bank's strategy may be
inappropriate to support
sustainable future growth.

On a quarterly basis, the Department of Risk
and compliance performs a Strength,
Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats
(SWOT) analysis to determine factors that
would affect attainment of the Bank’s Strategy
(This includes assessment of the strategic
pillars by looking at both internal and external
factors) and reports the same to Management
Audit & Risk Committee and the Board.
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23. BORROWING

As at 31 December 2024, the Bank had no outstanding exposure (2023: TZS 0).
24. FUNDING MIX

The Bank’s primary source of funding during the year was deposits from customers (Demand deposits,
Savings deposits and Time/ Fixed deposit) which commands 13% (2023: 13%) of the total funding,
equity 87% (2023: 87%) and borrowings 0% (2023: 0%). There was no major change in the funding mix
in 2024 compared to the year 2023. The Current/ Savings Account (CASAs) represented 80% of total
customer deposits in 2024 (2023: 79%). This means a lower cost of funds for the Bank. The balance

between debt and equity was as follows.

Debt:
2024 2023
TZS’000 TZS'000
Customer deposits 10,133,692 9,904,635
Borrowings — Current - -
10,133,692 9,904,635
Equity:
Issued and paid-up ordinary share capital 58,889,074 58,889,074
Preference shares capital B 8,519,900 8,519,900
67,408,974 67,408,974

25. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board takes final responsibility for the risk management and internal control systems of the bank.
it is the task of management to ensure that adequate internal financial and operational control systems
are developed and maintained on an ongoing basis to provide reasonable assurance regarding:

¢ The effectiveness and efficiency of operations.

Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The reliability of accounting records.

Business sustainability under normal as well as adverse conditions; and
Responsible behaviour towards all stakeholders.

The efficiency of any internal control system is dependent on the strict observance of prescribed
measures. There is always a risk of non-compliance with such measures by staff. Whilst no system of
internal control can provide absolute assurance against misstatement or losses, the Bank’s system is
designed to provide the Board with reasonable assurance that the procedures in place are operating
effectively.

The Board carries out risk and internal control assessment through the Board Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee. The Board assessed the internal control systems throughout the financial year
ending 31 December 2024 and is of the opinion that they met the accepted criteria.

26. SOLVENCY

As of 31 December 2024, the Bank’s core capital ratio was 80% which is above the threshold of 14.5%
set by the BOT. The Bank’s ‘core capital was TZS 78,169.33 million which was above TZS 15,000
million threshold set by BOT regulations.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

27. EMPLOYEE WELFARE

The Bank is committed to achieving its business objectives through its people. We believe that our
employees are the most valuable assets, and we make effort to develop their abilities and producitivity.
We encourage a work culture, foster relationship with them at every level in the Bank, make them
express their views and share their ideas to bring about improvements towards the achievement of our
vision.

This is based on the conviction that a pleasant and safe working climate, with an emphasis on the
enduring availability of satisfactorily trained, active and motivated workforce, is critical success factor
for the Bank. The Bank strives to create an environment responsive to different cultures and groups in
all our interactions with employees, customers, visitors, suppliers, contractors, shareholders, investors
and in the communities in which we operate.

Management and employees’ relationship

The Banks’s management focuses on building the right culture as a strategic human resource priority
by ensuring that Bank’s culture is embedded across all levels and the same is driven across the entire
workforce. Having the right culture is an essential element for the Bank’s future development as we
transform towards creating the digital era banking. Amongst the key components in this development
is ensuring that our leaders are charged by the major roles of fostering strong leadership capabilities,
talent management, enhancing employee relationship and development.

Employees performance management

The Bank uses Objective & Key results (OKR) System to evaluate employee's performance against set
and agreed objectives. The system forms the basis for providing employees with performance feedback,
recognition, development and corrective action plan to promote effective performance.

The OKR is an integrated process with full participation of managers and staff in both setting and
reviewing of performance objectives. The objective & key results review is conducted semi-annually
where the Line Manager and the subordinate meet to review the performance of that ending period and
as a session for giving feedback. The Performance assessment results form a valuable component on
one’s reward.

Training and development

The Bank regards its employees as the most asset and is committed to the learning, development and
growth of its employees. The Bank realizes that in discharging its objectives it needs to have trained
and skilled personnel so as to maintain a well-balanced organization and a management team capable
of performing the duties of the bank properly.

To meet its present and future human capital demands, the Bank train and develop its employees
through various development programs platform to train the staff through Coursera training which has
more than 4000 optional courses. The Bank encourages its employees to train and develop themselves
in order to acquire skills, knowledge and competencies which is necessary for their productivity,
efficiency and career development plan.

Employee grievance and complaints management mechanism

The Bank recognize the value and importance of having harmonious environment at the workplace.
Efforts are made by the Bank to ensure any reported complaints and grievances are expeditiously
handled.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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27. EMPLOYEE WELFARE (Continued)

Financial Assistance to staff/ Staff loan scheme

The Bank offers staff loans to enable its employees acquire capital goods, property, to effect
improvements to their properties, to meet educational expenses for themselves or dependents and to
meet unforeseen financial commitments. Staff loans are guided by the Bank's staff loan policy. Loans
are available to all confirmed employees depending on the assessment of the need and circumstances,
as long as it is in line with the human resources policies.

Medical Insurance
All members of staff with a maximum number of four beneficiaries (dependents) for each employee
were availed with medical insurance. The amount paid for medical insurance was TZS 497 million
(2023: TZS 361.8 million). The individual benefits depend on the insurance policy and keep revised as
the policy changes.

Health and safety

The Bank ensures that a strong culture of safety prevails at all times. A safe working environment is
ensured for all employees by providing adequate proper working tools, proper personal protective
equipment, hygiene, training and supervision where necessary.

Persons with disabilities

Letshego Faidika Bank Limited has not recruited any disabled person so far. However, it is the bank’s
policy to consider applications for employment by disabled persons bearing in mind the aptitudes of the
applicant concerned, for any positions that are appropriate.

Staff leave
Ali employees are entitled to twenty-eight (28) days leave every year. This is inclusive of traveling time
and any public holidays or work free days that occur during an employee’s leave.

Employees benefit plan

All eligible employees (74 in number) are members of the approved pension fund. The Bank makes
mandatory statutory pension contributions to a publicly administered pension plan (NSSF) which
qualifies to be defined contribution plans with the Bank having no further pension obligations. Bank’s
own contribution portion to NSSF during the year was TZS 483.29 million (2023: TZS 449.90 million).
Rates of contributions are set by the Government, with the employees also required to contribute a
certain portion.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates an equity-settled conditional Long Term incentive Plan (LTIP). Conditional
share awards are granted to management and key employees. The number of vesting share awards is
subject to achievements of certain non-market conditions. The grant date fair value of share awards
granted to employees is recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in liability,
over the period in which the employees become conditionally entitled to the share awards. The amount
recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares awards that vest on vesting
date.

28. GENDER PARITY

We believe it to be important to business success and integral to achieving our strategic objective of
being the best bank to work for. The Bank has a strong commitment to diversity and the fundamental
principle that it is not a barrier to participation in our workforce, management and on the senior
executive. As of 31 December 2024, the Bank had 74 (2023:61) employees. The following is the
distribution of employees by gender:

‘Gender 2024 2023 |
Female 42 27 |
Male 32 34 |
Total 74 61
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29. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Effective engagement through consistent dialogue with key stakeholders is central to business
sustainability, both in terms of understanding opinions and concerns, and in delivering the Bank's
commitments. Set out below are the key stakeholders with whom the Bank engages on a regular basis
and the means of engagement.

Stakeholder group | Means of engagement
Employees « Routine and specifically scheduled functional and cross-functional meetings as
required.
e Formal and informal face-to-face meetings as well as video conference
meetings are regularly held with and between; and
e Emails are sent to employees regarding policies, procedures and/or
I ~_employment related information.
Customers « A series of branch/office visits and customer events for retail, corporate and
insurance customers.
o A Call Centre is there to ensure constant engagement with the customers; and
« Interaction with customers via social media platforms.
Suppliers « Formalized procurement policies and procedures have been established; and
o Competitive procurement of goods and supplies is always exercised, and
fairness is of utmost importance while awarding supply contracts to selected
o service providers.
Shareholders/ e Annual General Meeting (AGM) is held on a yearly basis,
Investors « The annual report is presented at the AGM to shareholders; and
B » Shareholder’s seminar is held on a yearly basis. -
Regulatory « Regular communication with the central bank (Bank of Tanzania), and other
authorities regulatory authorities and
« Interaction with Tanzania Revenue Authority in respect of tax matters as
— appropriate. -
Government o Regular interactions through Government Relations and Regulatory Affairs
teams.
Community e Collaboration with related entities concerning CSR to foster responsible
initiatives and disseminate best practices; and
_ « Financial literacy and inclusion initiatives. B
edia « Interactions via press release, local TV, radio, magazines; and blogs and

articles to create brand awareness and reach our target audience.

30. SERIOUS PREJUDICIAL ISUES/MATTERS

During the year 2024, there were no serious legal matters which could affect the Bank (2023: None).

31. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Report by those charged with governance has been prepared in compliance with the Tanzania
Financial Reporting Standard No. 1 (The Report by those charged with governance) issued by The
National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA).

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions and balances are disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements. Related
party transactions are done at arm'’s length.
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33. POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Bank did not make any donations to political parties during the year (2023: Nil).
34. ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL PROGRAMME

Health and safety

The Bank has in place an Environmental and Social Policy (ESP) defining key commitments that should
be respected by the Bank and its employees when conducting operations.

The fundamental principles of Bank’s on environmental and social policy are as follows:

(i) Comply with local regulations and identify relevant social and environmental issues prevailing in
Tanzania;

(i) Respect fundamental human and social principles based on International Conventions.

(i) Increase awareness of environmental issues among employees and clients;

(iv) Constantly seek to refine the bank’s social and environmental practices.

35. APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR

Bank’s Independent Auditor:

Ernst & Young (EY)

EY House,

Plot No.162/1 Mzinga Way, 14111 Oysterbay,

Dar es Salaam P.O. Box 2475, Tanzania

Office: +255 22 292 4040/41/42 | Fax: :+255 22 292 4043
Website: http:.//www.ey.com

Firms’ registration Number:151, TIN number: 100-149-222

The Bank’s independent auditor, Ernst & Young, were appointed as per the Reg. 5 of the Banking and
Financial Institutions (External Auditors) Regulation, 2014, to serve for the second term of three years
from 2022 through a competitive bidding and approved at the Annual General Meeting. A resolution, to
appoint another independent auditor of the Bank for the financial year 2025 will be put to the Annual
General Meeting.

36. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE AUDITOR

Auditor is responsible to provide assurance of the correctness and consistency of information contained
in the report by those charged with governance with those provided in the financial statements.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

37. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY BY THE DIRECTORS

it is the responsibility of those charged with governance to prepare financial statements of the entity
which show a true and fair view in accordance with applicable standards, rules, regulations and legal
provisions.

This responsibility covers the period from the beginning of the financial year to the date those charged
with governance approve the audited financial statements and it covers all those charged with
governance who acted in this capacity during any part of the period covered by the financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

Signed by:
ARMANDD M. S@OULA [m 504 | 202€
Chairman Signature Date
BARAKA DAUDI MUNISI 7?'&?»4;\?“ (5] o] 2026
Chief Executive Officer Signature Date
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

The Tanzanian Companies Act, 2002 requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year that present fairly the state of affairs of the Bank as at the end of the financial year and
of the operating results of the Bank for that year. It also requires the Directors to ensure that the Bank
keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the
Bank. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud, error or other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for annual financial statements, which have been prepared using
appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards, the requirements of the Companies Act,
2002 and Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006 of Tanzania. The Directors are of the opinion
that the financial statements present fairly the state of the financial affairs of the Bank and of its
operating results.

The Directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied
upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems internal financial control.

The Directors have reasonable expectation that the Bank will have sufficient resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. The directors have therefore adopted the going
concern basis in preparation of financial statements.

The Directors are also responsible for other information in this report.

The financial statements were approved by board of directors for issue on 15 April 2025 and signed

on its behalf by: Sianed b
éne y.
E7A3A39F77EBB4EAW

Chairman Signature Date

ACMANDD M. g(@alh— 1504|2028

BARAKA DAUDI MUNISI WAl 1504|225

Chief Executive Officer Signature Date

Page | 30



LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

DECLARATION OF THE HEAD OF FINANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

The National Board of Accountant and Auditors (NBAA) according to the power conferred under the
Auditor and Accountants (Registration) Act No. 33 of 1972, as amended by Act No. 2 of 1995, requires
financial statement to be accompanied with a declaration issued by the Finance Manager responsible
for the preparation of financial statements of the entity concerned.

It is the duty of a professional accountant to assist the Board of Directors to discharge the responsibility
of preparing financial statements of an entity showing true and fair view position of the entity in
accordance with international financial reporting standards and statutory reporting requirements. Full
legal responsibility for financial statements rests with the Board of Directors as under Directors
Responsibility statement on an earlier page.

I, Isaack Chahe, being the Finance Manager of Letshego Faidika Bank Limited hereby acknowledge
my responsibility of ensuring that financial statements for the year ended 2024 have been prepared in
compliance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board and requirements of the Companies Act, No 12 of 2002 and Banking and Financial Institutions
Act, 2006.

| thus confirm that the financial statements of Letshego Faidika Bank Limited comply with applicable
accounting standards and statutory requirement as on that date and that they have been prepared
based on properly maintained financial records.

Signgd by: Isaack Chahe

Position: Finance Manager

NBAA Membership No: ACPA 6133

Date: ’5”(0%(_%7/3/
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Amember firr of

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
To the Shareholders of Letshego Faidika Bank Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Letshego Faidika Bank Limited (the Bank) set out on pages
37 to 102, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Bank as at 31 December 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2002 and the Banking and Financial
Institutions Act, 2006 of Tanzania.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance
with the the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Tanzania, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA
Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provided the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR (Continued)
To the Shareholders of Letshego Faidika Bank Limited

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

(PN

Credit risk and impairment of loans and advances to customers

As at 31 December 2024, the provision for
impairment on loans and advances to customers
was TZS 11,332.85 million (2023: TZS 15,264.30
million). This represents the estimation of
expected losses on loans and advances at the
year end.

The determination of appropriate provisions for
impairment is a key audit matter as it requires
management judgement, is subject to estimation
uncertainty and relies on available data.

Management’'s assessment of  significant
increases or decreases in credit risk involves
judgments and if not properly performed may
result into misallocation of loans in different
categories based on levels of risks hence
misstatement of the impairment amount.

There is a risk that the provision for impairment of
financial assets does not represent a complete
and accurate estimate of expected losses and
that the carrying value of these items is
misstated.

This includes the risk that the Expected Credit
Loss (ECL) model is not in compliance with IFRS
9.

The accounting policy and key sources of
estimation uncertainty in relation to financial
asset impairment provisions are disclosed in
Notes 15 and 32 to the financial statements.

Our audit procedures included:

e We undertook an assessment of the
Bank’s provisioning methodology and
compared it with the requirements of
IFRS 9;

« We evaluated the design and operating
effectiveness of the Bank’s controls and
IT controls around credit management,
ECL model and provision assessment.

e« We tested key controls over
completeness and accuracy of data
inputs to loan loss provisioning.

« We assessed management’'s
assumptions in relation ‘significant
increase or decrease in credit risk’ and
the allocation of loans into different
categories.

e We tested a sample of loans to ensure
that they have been included in the
correct stage/buckets depending on the
risk profiles of the customers in
accordance with the Bank’s
methodology and IFRS 9; and,

e We reviewed the IFRS 9 and IFRS 7
disclosures  for  adequacy and
compliance with the amendments
relating to IFRS 9.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR (Continued)
To the Shareholders of Letshego Faidika Bank Limited

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Bank’s
Information, Directors’ Report, Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities and Declaration by the Head of
Finance. The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2002 of Tanzania and the Banking and Financial
institutions Act, 2006 of Tanzania, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary

to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. The directors are responsible for overseeing
the Bank's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR (Continued)
To the shareholders of Letshego Faidika Bank Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

« Conciude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disciosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controt that we
identify during our audit

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation preciudes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
To the shareholders of Letshego Faidika Bank Limited

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for, and only for, the Bank's members as a body
in accordance with the Companies Act, 2002 of Tanzania and for no other purposes.

As required by the Companies Act, 2002 of Tanzania, we report to you, based on our audit, that:

e We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

« In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Bank, so far as appears from our
examination of those books;

« The Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial statements;

« Information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions with the Bank is
disclosed; and

e The Bank's statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are in agreement with the books of account.

As required by the Banking and Financial institutions (External Auditors) Regulations, 2014 of Tanzania,
we report to you, based on our audit, that;

« in our opinion, the capital adequacy ratios as presented in Note 31 to the annual financial
statements have been computed in accordance with the Banking and Financial Institutions Act,
2006, and the Banking and Financial Institutions (Capital Adequacy) Regulations, 2014 of
Tanzania.

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is CPA Joseph
Sheffu.

Signed by: Joseph [Sheffu{FCPA 867
For and behalf of Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

DAR ES SALAAM

Date_\_s \O ﬁkr__ 2025
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Income

Interest revenue calculated using the effective
interest method

Interest expense calculated using the effective
interest method

Net interest income

Fees and commission income

Total operating income

Impairment losses

Net Operating Income

Employee benefit expenses

Operating expenses

Other expenses

Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortisation of leasehold improvement
Amortisation of right to use assets

Profit /(Loss) before tax

Income tax (expense)/credit

Total comprehensive incomel/(loss) for the year
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Notes

10
1
17
18
19

20(a)

2024 2023
TZS'000 TZS'000
29,842,590 13,957,508
(467,821) (392,151)
29,374,769 13,565,358
889,015 1,002,118
889,015 1,002,118
30,263,783 14,567,475
~ (5786,510) (5.963,687)
24,477,273 8,603,788
(5,711,753) (6,132,524)
(7,976,120) (8,192,369)
(104,819) (10,005)
(804,346) (587,507)
(197,225) (46,478)
 (593268)  (652,266)
(15,387,531) (15,621,150)
9,089,742 (7,017,362)
(497,864) (8,002,907)
8,591,878 (15,020,270)




LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

Docusign Envelope ID: 04DDFE27-6306-47FB-AABA-14D1107E8A22

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

2024 2023
Assets Notes TZS'000 TZS'000
Cash and balances with Bank of Tanzania 12 1,414,458 1,962,523
Balance with other banks 13 24,891,042 14,386,720
Loans and advances to customer 16 76,490,429 69,617,299
Other assets 16 2,824,481 6,664,879
Right of use assets 19 1,694,902 360,351
Property and equipment 17 322,364 976,504
Leasehold improvements 18 565,899 465,450
Amount due from related parties 34 - 19,979,787
Taxation 20c) - 5,816
Total assets 108,203,576 114,419,329
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Customer deposits 21 10,133,692 9,904,635
Provision 25 241,711 365,142
Corporate tax payable 20(c) 31,299
Other liabilities 23 7,037,154 2,157,885
Lease liability 24 1,616,435 360,409
Amount due to related parties 34 8,699,170 80,311,587
Total liabilities 27,759,462 93,099,657
Equity
Ordinary share capital 26 58,889,074 58,889,074
Preference share capital 26 8,519,900 8,519,900
Capital reserve 29 50,532,564 -
Accumulated losses (37,497,424) (46,089,302)
Total equity 80,444,115 21,319,672
Total liabilities and equity 108,203,576 114,419,329

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on ) Hpﬁ ‘

2025 and signed on its behalf by:
ARMANDD M- SN

Chairman

BARAKA DAUD! MUNISI
Chief Executive Officer
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Date

(5104|2028~
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Note

s
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Adjustment for non-cash Items:
Impairment losses on loans and advances and bank
balances 8
Depreciation of property and equipment 17
Amortisation of leasehold improvements 18
Amortisation of right of use assets 19

Gain on forex

Effective interest income 5
Interest expense on lease 6
Effective interest expenses 6

Interest received from loans and advances and balances with other
banks
Interest paid in cash (deposits and borrowings)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in loans and advances to customers

increase in other assets

increase in balance with other banks with maturity of more
than 90 days.

Increase in amount due from related parties
Increase/decrease) in customer deposits

Decrease in staff bonus provisions

Decrease in other liabilities

Increase in amount due to related parties

Decrease of Statutory Minimum Reserve (SMR)

Tax paid 20
Net cash used in operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment 17
Payments for leasehold improvements 18

Net cash flow used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceed from issue of ordinary shares 26
Repayments to borrowing 22
Lease liabilities repayment 24

Net cash flow generated from financing activities
(Decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalent acquired from merge

Net Foreign Exchange Difference
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 14
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2024 2023
TZS'000 TZS'000
9,089,742 (7,017,362)
7,640,988 5,963,687
804,346 587,507
197,225 46,478
593,268 652,266
109,937 -

(29,842,590) (13,957,508)
143,998 77,710
323,393 314,440

(10,939,692) (13,332,782)

28,098,539 9,614,116
(325,141) (411,099)

(14,534,063) (56,157,567)
3,884,369 (3,981,556)

- (1,500,000)
(19,979,787)

230,375 258,437
123,431 297,711

4,113,825 1,648,153

(1,100,066) 80,311,587

 (21,352) (15,736)

10,023,667 (3,248,523)

(460,749)  (70,677)
9,562,918  (3,319,200)
(150,207) (1,459,413)

 (297,673) (221,804)
(447,880) (1,681,217

- 13,920,082
- (1,241,829)

~ (780,455) (754,521)
(780,455) 11,923,732
8,334,583 6,923,316

15,771,652 8,848,336
1,710,260 -

~ (109,937) -

25,706,558 15,771,652



LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

GENERAL INFORMATION

LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED, previously known as LETSHEGO BANK TANZANIA
LIMITED, is a limited liability Company incorporated under the Companies Act, 2002 and is
domiciled in the United Republic of Tanzania. It is licensed to operate as a Bank under the Banking
and Financial Institutions Act, 2006.

Background

in October 2022, the Board of Directors of LETSHEGO BANK TANZANIA LIMITED (LBTL) and
LETSHEGO TANZANIA LIMITED {which was trading as Faidika Microfinance) authorized the
merger of the two businesses. The process went through all the regulatory, board, and shareholiders’
approval needed in the course of 2023, culminating in the approval by the Bank of Tanzania (BOT)
and the Fair-Trade Competition Commission (FTCC).

LBTL is a 99.9% owned subsidiary of LETSHEGO HOLDINGS LIMITED and was identified as the
surviving entity in Tanzania, while LTL was also 99.9% owned by LETSHEGO HOLDINGS LIMITED.
LBTL and LTL's business were amalgamated on 1 July 2023, and the amalgamated entity was then
renamed as LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED and issued a new business license by the
regulator.

From June 2023, LBTL and LTL executed a Business Assets Transfer Agreement for the transfer
of assets and the assumption of liabilities concluded in 2024. The adopted Core banking system
and financial reporting system for the amalgamated business of LBTL are TBBC and Oracle e-
Business Suite software, respectively, in line with LETSHEGO HOLDINGS LIMITED PLC.

Letshego Faidika Bank Limited officially started operations in its reconstituted form on July 2023,
following approval of the merger of LETSHEGO BANK TANZANIA LIMITED and LETSHEGO
TANZANIA LIMITED. Following the merger, the Bank received all the assets and Liabilities of the
then LETSHEGO TANZANIA LIMITED, where the excess of the assets over the liabilities was
recognized as capital reserve, upon final determination of net assets transferred, as disclosed in the
Statement of Changes in Equity.

The address of the registered office of the Bank is:
LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

Vodacom Towers.

Paloma Park, 3rd Floor

P.O. Box 34459

Dar es Salaam, Tanzania

These financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
as indicated on the statement of financial position. The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

1. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise
stated or as required by International Financial Reporting Standards and interpretations to those
standards for assets and liabilities to be stated at their fair value as disclosed in the accounting
policies hereafter. The financial statements are presented in Tanzania Shillings (TZS) except where
explicitly stated.

1.2 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of Letshego Faidika Bank Ltd Limited have been prepared in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and
interpretations to those standards and comply with the Companies Act No. 12 of 2002 and the
Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006.

1.3 Presentation of financial statements

The Bank presents its statement of financial position in order of liquidity based on the Bank’s
intention and perceived ability to recover/settle the majority of assetsfliabilities of the corresponding
financial statement line item. All figures are in thousands of Tanzania Shillings (TZS ‘000).

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the statement of financial
position except when IFRS netting criteria are met.

1.4 Going Concern considerations.

The Directors confirm that applicable accounting standards have been foliowed and that the financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis The Bank’s Directors has assessed its
ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that after completion of the merger the bank
can maximize potential commercial and operational efficiencies therefore maximize potential
commercial and operational efficiencies thus Directors can confirm that the bank has the adequate
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future.

The Bank’s business fundamentals remain solid and has, among other assets, substantial cash and
pank balances with other banks amounting to over TZS 24,891 million (2023: TZS 14,387 million)
available to finance its operations.

The financial statements have therefore been prepared on the basis of accounting policies
applicable to a going concern. The directors have therefore presumed that the realisation of assets
and settlement of liabilities will occur in the ordinary course of business.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURE

(i) New and amended standards adopted by the Bank

The following standards have been adopted by the Bank for the first time for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2024:

Number

Amendme
nts to IAS
1

Lease
Liability in
a Sale and
Leasebac
Kk _
Amendme
nts fo
IFRS 16
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Effective
date
Annual
periods
beginning on
or after 1
January 2024.

Annual
periods
beginning on
or after 1
January 2024

Executive summary

In January 2020 and October 2022, the Board issued amendments

to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to specify the
requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current.
The amendments clarify:

« What is meant by a right to defer settlement

o That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting
period

e That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an
entity will exercise its deferral right

e That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible
liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of a
liability not impact its classification.

Disclosures.

In September 2022, the Board issued Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16).

The amendment to IFRS 16 specifies the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognize any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of
use it retains.




LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2, CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURE (Continued)

These amendments had no impact on the Bank’s financial statements.

(i) New standard and interpretations not yet adopted by the Bank

rNumber Effective date lExecutive summary i]
Amendments Annual periods | In September 2022, A clarification that a financial i
to the | beginning on or after | liability is derecognised on the ‘settlement date’ and
Classification 1 January 2026 introduce an accounting policy choice (if speciﬁc‘

| and conditions are met) to derecognise financial liabilities

| Measurement settled using an electronic payment system before the ‘
of Financial seftiement date
Instruments— !

Amendments « Additional guidance on how the contractual
to IFRS 9 and ‘ cash flows for financial assets with

| IFRS 7 | environmental,  social and corporate
. | governance (ESG) and similar features should
| ‘ be assessed
o Clarifications on what constitute ‘non-recourse |
| ‘ features’ and what are the characteristics of ‘
‘ contractually linked instruments
‘ « The introduction of disclosures for financial |
‘ | instruments with contingent features and
additional disclosure requirements for equity
| | instruments classified at fair value through ‘
other comprehensive income (OCI). |

IFRS 18 | Annual periods #In April 2024,, the Board issued. |
Presentation | beginning on or after |
and Disclosure | 1 January 2027 IFRS 18 introduces new requirements for presentation
\ in Financial within the statement of profit or loss and other |
| Statements | comprehensive income, including specified totals and |

| subtotals. Furthermore, entities are required to classify |
| | all income and expenses within the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income into one of |
! i five categories: operating, investing, financing, income |
taxes and discontinued operations, whereof the first
| | three are new.

The above standards that have been issued but not yet effective are not expected to have a material
impact on the Bank’s financial statements in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

For all new standards and interpretations not yet adopted and the Bank, will be adopted on the
respective effective dates. .
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise
stated.

{a) Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank
and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be
met before revenue is recognised:

(i) Interest and similar income and expenses

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets, except for:

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the financial asset) is calculated by taking into account
transaction costs and any discount or premium on the acquisition of the financial asset, as well as
fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Bank recognises interest income using a rate
of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the
loan. Hence, the EIR calculation also takes into account the effect of potentially different interest rates
that may be charged at various stages of the financial asset's expected life, and other characteristics
of the product life cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest and charges).

If expectations of fixed rate financiai assets or liabilities’ cash flows are revised for reasons other than
credit risk, then changes to future contractual cash flows are discounted at the original EIR with a
consequential adjustment to the carrying amount. The difference from the previous carrying amount
is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability
on the balance sheet with a corresponding increase or decrease in interest revenue/expense
calculated using the effective interest method. For fioating-rate financial instruments, periodic re-
estimation of cash flows to reflect the movements in the market rates of interest also alters the
effective interest rate, but when instruments were initially recognised at an amount equal to the

principal, re-estimating the future interest payments does not significantly affect the carrying amount
of the asset or the liability.

Net interest income comprises interest income and interest expense calculated using both the
effective interest method and other methods. These are disclosed separately on the face of the
income statement for both interest income and interest expense to provide symmetrical and
comparable information.

In its Interest income/expense calculated using the effective interest method, the Bank only includes
interest on those financial instruments.

The Bank calculates interest income on financial assets, other than those considered credit-impaired,
by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired is therefore regarded as ‘Stage 3', the Bank
calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the
financial asset cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Bank reverts to calculating interest income
on a gross basis”
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
(ii) Fees and commission income

Fee and commission income and expenses that are integral to the effective interest rate of a financial
asset or liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate.

Other fee and commission income, including account service fees, sales commissions, custody fees
and syndication fees are generally recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided.

Other fee and commission expenses relate mainly to transaction and service fees, which are
expenses as the services are received.

Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down and other credit related fees are
deferred (together with any incremental costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the EIR on the
loan. When it is unlikely that a loan will be drawn down, the loan commitment fees are recognised
over the commitment period on a straight-line basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers is presented in fee and commission income.
(iii) Other income

Results is arising from disposal of assets like Office equipment, furniture and fixtures.

(b) Employees’ benefits including post-employment benefits

(i) Post retirement benefits

The Bank operates a pension plan whereby each of its employees and the bank contributes 10%
and 10%, respectively of the employees’ monthly salaries to the state owned and managed
(statutory) Funds namely NSSF for private sector and PSSSF for public sector. Apart from these
monthly contributions, the bank has no further commitments or obligations to the Funds, and it has
no other post-retirement benefit scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss in the year
to which they relate.

(ii) Other employee benefits

A medical insurance is contracted to any existing staff and his/her family, after probation period.
The cost is charged to the profit or loss. The estimated monetary liability for employees’ accrued
leave entitlement at the reporting date is recognized as an expense accrual.

(c) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of income profit or
loss and other comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
(d) Property and equipment and right-of-use assets
Property and equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated
impairment losses, if any excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing. Such cost includes the cost

of replacing part of the property and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term projects if the
recognition criteria as per IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, are met.

Description Depreciation rate  Number of years
Motor vehicles 20% 5 years
Office furniture and fixture 20% 5 years
Office equipment 20% 5 years
Computer equipment 33% 3 years

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognized and presented as other income. The asset’s residual values, useful lives
and methods are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.
The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Property and equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The Bank recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
short of the useful life of the right of use and the lease term. The right-of-use assets are presented
within Note 20 and are subject to impairment in line with the Bank’s policy as impairment of non-
financial assets.

(e) Intangible assets

The bank’s intangible assets include the value of banking software and accounting software. An
intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the bank. Intangible
assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life. The amortization period and the
amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization
period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the profit or loss in
the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives as follows.

Amortisation Number of years

Banking software 4 years

Accounting software 4 years

(f) Leasing

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or it contains a lease, is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys
a right to use the asset.

(g) Bank as a lessee

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Bank as
lessee

The Bank determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Bank has some lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Bank
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

(g) Bank as a lessee (Continued)

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (less any lease incentives receivable), variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised
by the Bank and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease
payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

(h)Bank as a lessor

Leases where the bank does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which
they are earned.

(i) Leasehold improvements

Leases of leasehold improvements include improvements made on leased bank buildings for its
head office and branches.

Leasehold improvements are stated at cost, less accumulated -amortisation and accumulated
impairment in value. Leasehold improvements amortisation is calculated on straight-line basis at
annual rates estimated to write down the carrying values of the assets to their residual value over
their expected useful lives. The annual amortisation is of operating leasehold in use are:

Description Useful life
Leasehold improvements Lease tenure or 10 years
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(j) Impairment of non-financial assets

The bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the bank makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit's fair vaiue less costs to sell and its value in use
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. impairment losses of continuing operations
are recognised in profit or loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. Such reversal is recognised in the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

After such a reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's
revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful
life.

(k) Financial assets
(i) Initial recognition

At initial recognition, the Bank measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus
or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, transaction costs that are incremental and directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and
commissions.

Transaction costs of financial assets and financial liabifities carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Immediately after
initial recognition, an expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is recognised for financial assets
measured at amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at fair value through
Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI), which results in an accounting loss being recognised in
and other comprehensive income when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the transaction price on initial
recognition the entity recognizes the difference as follows:

{(a) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability (i.e. a level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the difference is recognized as a gain or loss.

(b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred, and the timing of recognition of deferred day one
profit or loss is determined individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument,
deferred until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using market observable inputs, or
realized through settlement.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
(k) Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

The Bank classifies its financial assets into the following category:
Amortised cost

This category includes assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payment of principal and interest and are not designated at FVPL. The
carrying amounts of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance. Interest
income from these assets is included in “interest and similar income” using the effective interest
rate method. Loans and advances to customers, financial assets held to collect, cash and balances
with Bank of Tanzania (BOT), placement with other banks and other assets (excluding
prepayments for rent and insurance and advance for goods and services) fall under this
classification.

Business model: the business model reflects how the Bank manages the assets in order to
generate cash flows. That is, whether the Bank’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash
flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from
the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading
purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured
at FVPL. Factors considered by the Bank in determining the business model for a group of assets
include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the asset's
performance is evaluated and reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and
managed and how managers are compensated.

SPPI- Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect
contractual cash flows and sell, the Bank assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest (the ‘SPP! test). In making this assessment,
the Bank considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other
basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where
the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic
fending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Classes of Business model consideration Cash flow characteristics
financial assets

Loans and advances |The business models focus on growing |The cash flows on retail |
advances within acceptable credit appetite |advances are solely payments
limits and maintaining strong collection of principal and interest.

practices. Interest charged to customers

The products included under this business |compensates the bank for the

models include: time value of money, credit
o Micro Loans risk and administrative costs
« Housing/SME Loans (including a profit margin).

o The key risk in this business model is
credit risk. This is influenced by the
macro environment within which the
business operates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
(k) Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

Amortised cost (Continued)

Cash flow
characteristics

[ Classes of financial assets | Business model consideration

Cash and cash equivalents are
short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of
cash. These assets are held to
|- collect contractual cash flows.
Other assets  (excluding | Financial accounts receivable are
prepayments for rent and | short-term financial assets that are
insurance and advance for | held to collect contractual cash
goods and services) flows.

The cash flows on these
assets are solely payments
of principal and interest.

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash flows on these
assets are solely payments
of principal and interest. B

The Bank reclassifies financial assets when it changes its business model for managing financial
assets.

Reclassifications are expected to be very infrequent. Such changes are determined by the Bank's
senior management as a result of external or internal changes and must be significant to the Bank's
operations and demonstrable to external parties. Accordingly, a change in Bank's business model
will occur only when the Bank either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its
operations; for example, when the Bank has acquired, disposed of or terminated a business line.

The following are not considered to be changes in the Bank’s business model:

1. A change in intention related to financial assets {even in circumstances of significant changes in
market conditions).

2. A temporary disappearance of a particular market for financial assets; or

3. A transfer of financial assets between parts of the Bank with different business models.

When the Bank’s financial asset converts into a different financial asset during the instrument's life,
the Bank considers whether the original asset should continue to be recoghized or whether, on
conversion, the old instrument is derecognized, and a new one is recognized.

If the Bank reclassifies its financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date, defined as the first day of the first reporting period following the change in
business model that results in the Bank reclassifying financial assets. The reclassification applies
prospectively from the reclassification date and therefore previous recognized gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest are not restated. Changes in the objective of the
Bank's business model are usually affected before the reclassification date.

Measurement at the date of reclassification

When the Bank’s financial asset is reclassified from amortized cost to FVOCI (or vice versa) the
measurement of expected credit losses will not change as both classification categories apply the
same impairment approach. However, the presentation and disclosure of the impairment allowance
will differ. If the Bank’s financia! asset is reclassified out of FVOC! to amortized cost measurement,
for presentation purposes, a loss allowance would be recognized as an adjustment to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the reclassification date.

if the Bank’s financial asset is reclassified out of amortized cost to FVOCI measurement, for
presentation purposes, a loss allowance would be derecognized (and thus would no longer be
recognized as an adjustment to the gross carrying amount) but instead would be recognized as an
accumulated impairment amount (of an equal amount) in other comprehensive income and would
be disclosed from the reclassification date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(k) Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Amortised cost (Continued)

Measurement at the date of reclassification (Continued)

If the Bank reclassifies a financial asset from amortized cost to FVTPL, it discloses as a separate
line item in its statement of comprehensive income any gain or loss arising from a difference
between the previous carrying amount and its fair value on reclassification.

Similarly, if the Bank reclassifies a financial asset from FVOCH to FVTPL, it discloses as a separate
line in its statement of comprehensive income any gain or loss arising from reclassifying the
previously recognized amount in other comprehensive income to profit or loss.

(iii) Impairment
The ECL model applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost and debt instruments at
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI), lease receivables and certain loan
commitments as well as financial guaranteed contracts.

Under IFRS 9, ioss allowances are measured on either of the following bases:

12-month ECLs: these are a portion of the lifetime expected credit losses and represent the amount
of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.

Lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The Bank recognises an allowance for either 12-month or lifetime ECLs,
depending on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial
recognition. Indicators of a SICR include any of the following:

» 30 days past due rebuttable presumption

« Considering historical delinquency behaviour of accounts that are currently up to date and
bucket 1 (1-30 days)

o Technicalloperational arrears with proof that an account remains in arrears after the
technical/operational error is fixed

» Significant adverse changes in business, financial and/or economic conditions in which the client
operates J

Measurement of ECLs

The measurement of ECLs reflects a probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
the entity’s best available forward-looking information. The above-mentioned probability-weighted
outcome considers the possibility of a credit loss occurring and the possibility of no credit loss
oceurring, even if the possibility of a credit loss occurring is low. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive). ECLs are
discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period,
of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of defautt occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument.

Based on the above process, the Bank groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI,
as described below:

Page | 53
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(k) Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Stage 1:

Stage 2:

Stage 3:

When loans are first recognised, the Bank recognises an aliowance based on ECL. Stage 1
loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved, and the loan has been
reclassified from Stage 2 records an allowance for the LTECL. Stage 2 ioans also include
facilities, where the credit risk has improved, and the loan has been reclassified from Stage
3.

Financial instruments which have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but do not have objective evidence of a credit loss event. Lifetime expected credit
losses are recognised. Interest revenue is calculated on the gross carrying amount of the
asset.

Financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. Lifetime
expected credit losses are recognized. interest revenue is calculated based on the amortized

cost net of the loss provision, {net carrying amount).

POCI assets are recorded at fair value at original recognition and interest income is subsequently
recognised based on a credit adjusted EIR. The ECL allowance is only recognised or released to
the extent that there is a subsequent change in the expected credit losses.

For financial assets for which the Bank has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the
entire outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced. This is considered a (partial) derecognition of the financial asset.

The calculation of ECL

The Bank calculates ECL based on four probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected
cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference
between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the entity expects to receive. The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and
the key elements are, as follows:

> PD The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the
facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

» EAD The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking
into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including
repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise.
expected drawdowns on committed facilities and accrued interest from missed
payments.

> LGD The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default
occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the
realisation of any collateral or credit enhancements that are integral to the loan and not
required to be recognised separately.

The assessment of the ECL of a financial asset or portfolio of financial assets entails estimations of
the likelihood of defaults occurring and of default correlations between counterparties. The bank
measures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
(k) Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Impairment (Continued)

The calculation of ECL (Continued)
ECL using probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD). These
three components are multiplied together and adjusted for the fikelihood of default.

The calcutation of ECL incorporates forward-looking information. The bank has performed historical
analyses and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL for each portfolio at
subsidiary level. These economic variables and their associated impact on the PD, EAD and LGD do
not vary by financial instrument. The bank uses BMI Research/Fitch Solutions to assist in the forecast
of econormic variables and an overview of the economy quarterly or more often if necessary.

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Bank has no reasonable.
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. If the amount to be written
off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an -addition to the
allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are
credited to credit loss expense.

Modification of financial liabilities

When the modification of the terms of an existing financial liability is not judged to be substantial and,
Consequently, it does not result in derecognition, the amortised cost of financia! liability is recalculated
by computing the present value of estimated future contractual cash flows that are discounted at the
financial liability’s original EIR. Any resulting difference is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For financial liabilities, the Bank considers a modification to be substantial based on qualitative factors
and if it results in a difference between the adjusted discounted present value and the original carrying
amount of the financial liability of, or greater than, ten percent.

Modification of loans

The Bank sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to
customers. When this happens, the Bank assesses whether or not the new terms are substantially
different to the original terms. If the terms are substantially different, the Bank derecognises the original
financial asset and recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate
for the asset. The date of renegotiation is consequently considered 1o be the date of initial recognition
for impairment calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Bank also assesses whether the new financial asset
recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in circumstances where the
renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally agreed payments.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in

derecognition, and the Bank recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of
the financial asset and recognises a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
(k) Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the assets have expired, or when they have been transferred and either (i) the Bank transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, or (i) the Bank neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Bank has not retained control.

The Bank enters into transactions where it retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows from
assets but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities and transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards. These transactions are accounted for as 'pass through'’
transfers that result in derecognition if the Bank:

(i) Has no obligation to make payments unless it collects equivalent amounts from the assets;
(it} Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and
(ili) Has an obligation to remit any cash it coliects from the assets without material delay

Coliateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Bank under standard repurchase agreements and
securities lending and borrowing transactions are not derecognised because the Bank retains
substantially all the risks and rewards on the basis of the predetermined repurchase price, and the
criteria for derecognition are therefore not met. This also applies to certain securitisation transactions in
which the Bank retains a subordinated residual interest.

(1) Financial liabilities

The financial fiabilities on the statement of financial position comprise of; deposits from banks, deposits
from customers, borrowings and other liabilities (excluding Tax payable and statutory deductions).

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, except for:

« Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this classification is applied to derivatives
financial liabilities held for trading (e.g., short positions in the trading booking) and other financial
fiabilities designated as such at initial recognition. Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss are presented partially in other comprehensive income (the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability, which is determined as the amount that is not atiributable to Changes in market
conditions that give rise to market risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of change
in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such a presentation would create, or enlarge, an
accounting mismatch, in which case the gains and losses attributable to changes in the credit risk of
the liabiiity are also presented in profit or loss; the derivative liabilities are held in this category.

« Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets which did not qualify for derecognition,
whereby a financial liability is recognised for the consideration received for the transfer. In
subsequent periods, the Bank recognises any expense incurred on the financial liability; and

« Financial guarantees and loan commitments.
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3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
(1) Financial liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Derecognition
Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires).

The exchange between the Bank and its original lenders of debt instruments with substantially different
terms, as well as substantial modifications of the terms of existing financial liabilities, are accounted for
as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original effective interest rate,
is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability. In addition, other qualitative factors, such as the currency that the instrument is
denominated in, changes in the type of interest rate, new conversion features attached to the instrument
and change in covenants are also taken into consideration. if an exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised
as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or modification is not accounted for
as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are
amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.

(m) Classes of financial instruments

IFRS 9 have the same requirements for the classification of financial fiabilities. From a recognition of
gains and losses perspective, the amount of the change in fair value that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of financial fiabilities that have been designated at fair value through profit and loss shall,
in terms of IFRS 9, be recognised in OCI with the remaining amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability being presented in profit or loss. The gains and losses presented in OCI are not
subsequently recognised in profit or loss. Where, however, presenting the changes in the fair value of
the liability due to changes in credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss, IFRS 9 permits the gains and losses due to changes in the credit risk of that liability to be
recognised in profit or loss.

(n)Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents referred in the cash flow comprise cash on hand, non-restricted current
accounts, deposits held at call with banks with an original maturity of three months or less, due from
banks on demand and investments with maturity periods of three months or less in money market
instruments.

(o)Foreign currency translation

items included in the Bank’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency). The financial statements
are presented in Tanzanian Shillings (“the functional currency) and figures are in thousands of Tanzania
Shillings.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling
at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rate of exchange at the reporting date. All differences arising on non-trading activities are taken
to ‘Other operating income’ in the statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(p)Acceptances, Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specific payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debts instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to banks,
financial institutions and others on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdraft and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at the
higher of:

« The amount of the loss allowance; and

e The premium received on initial recognition less income recognised in accordance with the

principles of IFRS 15.

Loan commitments provided by the Bank are measured as the amount of the loss allowance. The Bank
has not provided any commitment to provide loans ata below-market interest rate, or that can be settled
net in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowance is recognised as a
provision. However, for contracts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Bank
cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment component from
those on the loan component, the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the combined expected credit losses
exceed the gross carrying amount of the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as provision.

(q) Taxation

(i) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected
fo be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date.

The income tax expenses or credit for the period is the tax payable or receivable on the current period's
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributed to temporary difference and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
return with the respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations is subject to interpretation. It
establishes tax liabilities where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities. If uncertain tax positions arise, they are recognized as part of the income tax liability
measured in terms of IFRIC 23.

IAS 12 requires tax to be recognised and measured according to a relatively tightly defined accounting
model. IAS 37 requires a provision to be recognised only where it is more likely than not that an outflow
of resources will occur as a result of a past obligating event and measured at the best estimate of the
amount expected to be paid. In the case of uncertain tax treatments an approach distinct from that in
]AS 37 is required when IFRIC 23 is applied.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary difference arising
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwil.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in transactions other than a business combination that at the time of the transactions affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
(q) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred income is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realized, or the differed income tax liability is settled.

(ii} Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled, and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

o Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except:

e Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or foss.

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avaitable to allow all or part of the deferred
fax asset to be utilized.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered. Deferred tax assets and fiabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive
income are also recognised in equity or other comprehensive income and not in profit or loss.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

(iii) Value added tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised inclusive of the amount of value added tax except

where the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the value added tax is recognised as an asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
(r) Dividends
Ordinary shares;

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when they are
approved by the bank's shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are
declared and no longer at the discretion of the bank. Dividends for the year that are approved after the
reporting date are disclosed as an event after the reporting date.

Preference shares;

The Bank has only irredeemable preference shares, such shares that entity don't have to retrieve, and,
in this case, they are like ordinary shares. Therefore, they are recorded as part of equity in the statement
of financial position.

As irredeemable preference shares are part of equity therefore, any return paid on such shares is
treated as distribution of profit and reported in statement of changes in equity.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Bank's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affectthe reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could resuft in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. In the process of applying the Bank’s
accounting policies, management has made the following judgements and assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to circumstances
beyond the Bank’s control and are reflected in the assumptions if and when they occur. ltems with the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements with substantial
management judgement and/or estimates are collated below with respect to judgements/estimates
involved.

(a)Impairment losses on financial assets

The bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The bank regularly reviews its loan portfolio and makes judgments
in determining whether an impairment loss should be recognized in respect of observable data that may
impact on future estimated cash flows.

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce the differences between loss estimates and loss experience.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for
measuring ECL, such as:
« Determining criteria for a significant increase in credit risk;
« Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL;
« Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL; and
« Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)
(b) Going concern

As explained in Note 1.4 above, the Bank’s management has assessed its ability to continue as a going
concern and is satisfied that it has the resources o continue in business for the foreseeable future.

(c) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the tax fosses can be utilised. Although in Tanzania tax
losses can be utilised indefinitely, judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based on the likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together with future
tax-planning strategies. Refer to note 21.

(d) Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Bank’s EIR method recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best
estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioral life of loans and deposits and
recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages and other
characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges). This
estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behavior and life cycle
of the instruments, as well expected changes to Tanzania's base rate and other fee income/expense
that are integral parts of the instrument.

(e) Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Bank cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR’) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Bank would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a simitar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a simitar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Bank ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available or when they need to be adjusted to refiect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Bank
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required
to make certain entity-specific adjustments (such as the bank’s stand-alone credit rating, or to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease).

2024 2023
TZS'000 TZS'000
5 INTEREST INCOME CALCULATED USING THE EFFECTIVE INTEREST METHOD
Loans and advances 28,971,968 13,440,130
Interest from balances with other banks . 870622 517,378
20842500 __ 13957.508

6 INTEREST EXPENSE CALCULATED USING THE EFFECTIVE INTEREST METHOD

interest on customers deposits 323,823 278,998

Borrowed funds - 35,442

Interest expenses-lease 143,998 77,710
467,821 392,151
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2024 2023
TZS'000 TZS'000

7 FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME
Early closure and processing fees 643,107 630,207
Withdrawal fees on savings account 6,534 3,657
Other fees and commissions™ 239374 368254

889,015 1,002,118

* This includes ATMs commissions, loan fees on business Loans, early closing fees on staff loan,
Dormant account reactivation fees, Account maintenance fees and M-pesa commission revenue.

8 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Loan impairment provision (3,931,464) 4,921,634

Bad loans written off 11,572,452 1,376,065

Recoveries from loans written off ~ (1,854,478)  (334,012)
5,786,510 5,963,687

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Wages and salaries 4,410,918 3,043,219
National Social Security Fund (NSSF) 483,299 449,903
Skill Development Levy {(SDL) 169,125 165,157
Medical 497,770 361,882
Terminal benefits 450 1,120,923
Other benefits* 150,181 991,441

5,711,753 6,132,524

*Other benefits include leave allowance, staff training, overtime allowance, long-term incentive plan
and transport allowances.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

10

1

12

OPERATING EXPENSES
Auditor's remuneration
Utilities

Communication cost

Rent expense

Transport cost

Professional fees

Marketing and promotions
Service charges™*
Maintenance and repair
Directors’ fees and expenses
Regulatory levies and duties
Other operating expenses™
Other expenses*

2024 2023
TZS'000 TZS'000
120,000 120,000
95,317 114,808
966,729 713,306
470,472 128,611
295,319 588,712
809,444 941,189
870,357 992,620
255,300 300,803
169,256 47,571
211,815 272,887
165,951 385,157
1,737,826 1,721,224
1,808,332 1,865,481
7,976,120 8,192,369

*Other expenses consist of numerous amounts, among them being printing costs, generator running
expenses, ATM card costs, Office, and security expenses.

“*Other operating expenses consist of expenses relating to sales and collection commissions,
licences, subscriptions, membership, and inspection fees.

** Sarvice charges consist of numerous amounts, among them being swift charges, ATM lease,

cheque production costs, and Tanzania Interbank Settlement System (TISS) charges.

OTHER EXPENSES
Bank charges

CASH AND BALANCE WITH BANK OF TANZANIA
Cash at hand

Local Currency
Foreign Currency
Balance with Bank of Tanzania

Statutory Minimum Reserve (SMR)

BoT clearing TZS

BoT clearing USD

104,819 10,005
104,819 10,005
463,611 803,395
_ 1,443 1,443
465,054 804,838
598,943 577,591
65,088 555,768
285,374 24,326
~ 949,404 1,157,685
1,414,458 1,962,523

The-bank has not reported any impairment on balances with Bank of Tanzania as at 31 December
2024 (2023: Nil).
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

13 BALANCE WITH OTHER BANKS
Interest bearing fixed deposit account
Interest bearing current account (payable on
demand)

Accrued Interest on Other bank deposits

2024 2023
125'000 125000
11,246732  5004,344
9,347,688

13,522,967
121,342 34,688
24,891,042 14,386,720

The bank has not reported any impairment on balances with other banks as at 31 December

2024 (2023: Nil).
Maturity analysis

Interest bearing fixed deposit account maturing more
than 90 days

Interest bearing fixed deposit account maturing less
than 90 days

Current account with less than 90 days maturity from
the date of acquisition

Fixed deposit with more than 90 days maturity from
the date of acquisition

Interest receivable on FDR

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at hand (Note 12)
Balance with Bank of Tanzania (Note 12)
Balance with other banks (Note 13)

Less: Statutory Minimum Reserve
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. 1,500,000
24891042 3,504,344

. 0382376

24.891,042 14,386,720

24,891,042 14,386,720

465,054 804,838

940404 1,157,685
24891042 14,386,720
26,305,501 16,349,243

 (598,943) _ (577,591)

25,706,558

15,771,652




LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

15

16

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Small and Medium Enterprises loans
Personal loans
Accrued Interest receivables

Gross loans and advances
Provision for impairment losses

Net loan and advances

Maturity analysis

Maturity up to 3 Months

Maturity between 3 and 12 months
Maturity between 12 and 24 months
Maturity between 24 and 36 months
Maturity over36 months

“The age analysis of amount that are past due

shown in note 32 (a)

Movement in provision for impairment

losses
At 1 January

Allowance on new loan and advance (Note 8)

Write offs
De-recognized during the year
At 31 December

OTHER ASSETS
Prepayment and advance payments
Other receivables

Other assets are receivable within 12
deposit balance receivables, Mpesa b

balances, and salary advances.
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2024 2023

TZS'000 TZS'000
10,223,521 9,951,355
76,955,942 74,266,497
643801 663,745
87,823,264 84,881,597

| (11,332,835) (15264,298)
76,490,429 69,617,299
14,749,848 5,964,770
1,082,871 5,506,679
2,220,055 6,276,633
2,082,486 5,633,124
67,688,004 61500391
e 87,823,264 84,881,597

but with immaterial impairment is

2024 2023
TZ5'000 TZS'000
15,264,298 6,564,423
3,931,464 4,921,634
(11,572,452) (1,376,065)
3709524 5154306
11,332,835 15,264,298 _
604,340 308,579
2,220,141 6,356,300
2,824,481 6,664,879

months which include significantly Timiza
alance, ATM balances, insurance premium
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

18 LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS 2024 2023
TZS'000 TZS'000
Cost
At 1 January 1,573,875 1,352,071
Additions 297,674 89,095
Transferred from Letshego Limited t/a
Faidika - - 132,710
At 31 December 1,871,549 1,573,876

Accumulated amortisation

At 01 January 1,108,425 1,061,948
Amortization for the year 197,225 46,478
At 31 December 1,305,650 1,108,426

Net carrying value
At 31 December 565,899 465,450

19 RIGHT OF USE ASSET

Cost

At 1 January 1,620,342 1,124,606
Transferred from LTL* 1,037,151
Additions 1,862,784 76,112
Derecognition during the

year (1,453,360) (617,526)
Reassessment during the

year 65036 =
At 31 December 2,094,802 1,620,342

Accumulated Amortisation

At 1 January 1,259,991 272,913
Transferred from LTL* - 711,997
Derecognition during the year (1,453,360) (377,185)
Amortisation during the year 593 268 652,266
At 31 December 399,899 1,259,991
Net carrying value 1,694,902 360,351

The Bank has lease contracts for office buildings (i.e., head office and branches).

* This relates to transfer of right of use balances from - LTL — Letshego Tanzania Limited t/a
Faidika to the Bank as a result of the merger between the two entities. The transfer was at book
value.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

20
(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

2024 2023
TZS'000 TZS'000
TAXATION
Income tax charge/(credit)
Income tax charge during the year -
Deferred tax release/(credit) during the year -
Alternative minimum tax (AMT) - 497,864 74,560
o 497,864 74,560
Reconciliation of tax income/(loss) to tax base on
accounting Loss
Accounting profit/(loss) before Taxation 9,089,742 (7,017,362)
Tax at domestic rate (30%) 2,726,923 (2,105,209)
Alternative Minimum Tax (AMT) 497,864 74,560
Deferred tax (release)/charged during the year (3,497,460) -
Permanently disallowed expenditure 770,537 2,105,209
497,864 74,560
Tax Payable/(Recoverable)
At 1 January (5,816) (9,699)
Tax paid (460,749) (70,677)
Tax expense for the year - 497,864 74,560
At 31 December 31,299 (5,816)

The bank had accumulated tax losses of TZS 15.7 billion as at 31 December 2024 (2023: TZS
19.1 billion). However, income tax has been charged in accordance with the Alternative
Minimum Tax provisions that require that entities that are tax loss making for more than two tax
periods should pay tax at the rate of 0.5% of the revenue reported.

However, it should be noted that Tanzania Revenue Authority (TRA) has not assessed and
verified the accumulated tax losses. Upon completion of TRA assessment, accumulated tax
losses may be adjusted.

Deferred Tax

Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose (474,062)

Tax losses carried forward 15,655,147 19,093,108

Provision for bad debt

Provision for trade and other payables 7817552 6,264,640
23,272,699 24,883,686

Deferred tax asset thereon at the domestic rate (30%) 6,981 1,810 7,465,106

Deferred tax (Asset) as at 31 December 6,981,810 7,465,106

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized. However, should the bank generate sufficient
taxable profits in the future, these unrecognized deferred tax assets can be utilized. It is worth
highlighting that under Tanzania tax regulations, there is no time limit for carrying forward tax
losses.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

21

22

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
Interest bearing deposits

Savings account
Term deposit

Accrued interest on Term deposit

Maturity analysis

Maturity up to 3 months

Maturity between 3 and 12 months
Maturity over 12 months

BORROWINGS

31 December 2024
Maturity after 12 months

Letshego Tanzania Limited t/a Faidika

(LTL)
Maturity within 12 months

Letshego Tanzania Limited t/a Faidika

31 December 2023
Maturity within 12 months

Letshego Tanzania Limited (Note 35)
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Principal

Principal

2024 2023
TZS'000 TZS'000
9,446,183 8,651,313
666,300 1,230,795
21,200 22527
10,133,692 9,904,635
9,446,183 9,027,060
687,509 677,575
- 200,000
10,133,692 9,904,635
Interest
Payable Total
Interest
Payable Total




LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

22

23

24

25

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Borrowing reconciliation

At 1 January 2024

interest accrued during the year
Repayment of Loan (Principal and inferest)
At 31 December 2024

At 1 January 2023
Interest accrued during the year

Loan repayment during the year (principal and interest)
At 31 December 2023

OTHER LIABILITIES

Tax payable and statutory deductions

Accruals
Sundry creditors

Other liabilities are payable within 12 months

LEASE LIABILITIES
At 1 January
Transferred from LTL*

Lease reassessment
Additions

Lease repayments
Termination
Translation difference

interest expenses lease
At 31 December

Maturity analysis
Within one year
After one year but not more than five years

PROVISION

At 1 January
Additions

At 31 December

These provisions relate to deferred bonus and long-term incentive plans.
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2024 2023
TZS'000 TZS'000
LTL Loan Total
1,241,829

= - _(1,241,829)
- 1,241,829

- (1,241,829)
119,650 218,269
1,288,579 516,850

5,682,932 1,422,766
7,091,160 2,157,885
360,409 835,266
- 309,035
58,414 -
1,862,784 76,112
(780,455) (754,521)
- (222,241)
(28,714) 39,047
143,998 77,710
1,616,436 360,408
1,190,592 360,408
425,843 -
1,616,435 360,408
365,142 67,431

(123,431) 297,711

241,711 365,142 -




LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

26 SHARE CAPITAL 2024 2023
TZS'000 TZS'000

Ordinary share capital
Authorized share capital 44,969,000 44,969,000

Issued and fully paid

At 1 January 58,889,074 44,968,992
Issued during the year - 13,920,082
At 31 December 58,889,074 58,889,074

Non- cumulative preference share
Authorized share capital

Issued and fully paid 8,519,900 8,519,900
At 1 January 8,519,900 8,519,900
At 31 December 8,519,900 8,519,900 _

During the year the Letshego Africa Holdings Limited did not inject capital through ordinary
share (2023: ordinary share of 100,000 each amounting TZS 13,920,082).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

During the year, the authorised share capital of the bank was TZS 67,409,974,219 divided into TZS
58,889,074,219 (2023: TZS 58,889,074,219) Ordinary Shares of TZS 100,000 (2023:100,000) each
and 8,519,000,000 (2023: 8,519,000,000) Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference share, with quantity
of TZS 100,000 (2023:100,000) each.

Called up and fully paid share capital.

588,891 (2023: 588,891) ordinary shares of TZS 100,000 each amounting to TZS 58,889,074,219
(2023: TZS 58,889,074,219) as at end of year 2024 and 85,199 (2023: 85,199) preferences share of
T7S 100,000 amount to TZS 8,519,900,000 (2023: 8,519,900,000) giving the total of TZS
67,409,974,219 (2023: TZS 67,409,974,219).

Non-cumulative preference shareholders are given priority on receiving dividend over ordinary share.
Holders of non-cumulative preference shares are not entitled to carry over the dividend for the year
the Bank has not declared to issue dividend.

27. GENERAL REGULATORY RESERVE

28

2024 2023

TZS'000 TZS'000

At 1 January 783,314
Appropriation from /(to) retained earnings - (783,314)

At 31 December - -

Regulatory reserve represents an amount set aside to cover additional provisions for loan losses
required to comply with the requirements of Bank of Tanzania's prudential guidelines. This amount

is not available for distribution and not part of the bank’s core capital.

2024 2023
TZS'000 T2S'000

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financial assets categorised at amortised cost
Cash and balance with Bank of Tanzania 1,414,458 1,962,523
Balances with other banks 24,891,042 14,386,720
Loans and advances to customers 76,490,429 69,617,299
Amount due from related parties - 19,979,787
Other assets (excluding prepayment) 2,220,141 6,356,300
Total 105,016,070 112,302,630
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Customer deposits 10,133,692 9,904,635
Other liabilities 6,971,510 1,939,616
Amount due to related parties 8,699,170 80,311,587
Lease liabilities 1,616,435 360,409
Total 27,420,807 92,516,247
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

29. REGULATORY CAPITAL
The Bank aims to manage its capital not only to be in compliant with BOT capital regulations but able
to grow its business. Therefore, its main objectives are broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the
statement of financial position.
BOT set Regulatory capital consists of:
Tier 1 Capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings including current year
loss, after deduction for goodwill and intangible assets, and other regulatory adjustments relating to

items that are included in equity but are treated differently for capital adequacy purposes.

Tier 2 Capital, which includes subordinated long-term debt, preference shares and available-for-sale

reserves and general provision as determined by Bank of Tanzania regulation.

Nominal Risk Nominal Risk
Statement of weighted Statement weighted
financial amounts of financial amounts
position position
amounts amounts
2024 2024 2023 2023
TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS'000
Cash and balances with
Bank of Tanzania 1,414,458 - 1,962,523 -
Balances with other banks 24,891,042 - 14,386,720 2,877,344
Cheque and Item for
Clearing 387,802 193,901
Loans and advances 76,490,429 76,490,429 69,617,299 68,063,168
Other assets 2,824,481 2,824,481 4,511,553 4.511,553
Leasehold improvements 565,899 565,899 465,450 465,450
Amount due from related
parties - - - 19,979,787
Prepayment expenses - - 308,579 -
Deferred Commission
Charges - - 1,823,112 -
Property and equipment 2,017,267 2,017,267 976,504 976,504
108,203,576 81,898,076 94,439,543 97,067,707
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29. REGULATORY CAPITAL (Continued)

Tier 1 capital

Ordinary share capital
Preference share capital
Less: Accumulated losses
Capital reserve™

Less:

Prepaid expenses

Deferred charges

Total qualifying Tier 1 capital

Tier 2 capital

Specific provision

General provision

Total suppiementary capital

2024 2023
TZ5'000 TZS'000
58,889,075 58,889,074
8,519,900 8,519,900
(36,966,866) (46,089,302)
50,532,564 -
80,974,672 21,319,672
(604,340) (308,579)
(1,707;551) (1,823,112)
78,662,781 19,187,982
78,662,781 19,187,982

*The minimum core capital requirement set by the Bank of Tanzania is TZS 15 billion. As of 31
December 2024, the Bank recorded a core capital of TZS 78.66 billion (2023: TZS 19.19 biilion) which

is above the regulatory threshold.

Risk - weighted assets
On balance sheet
Market risk

Operational risk

Total risk - weighted assets

Bank Ratios
Tier 1 (BoT Minimum required is 12.5%)
Tier 1 + Tier 2 (BoT Minimum required is 14.5%)

94,439,543 97,067,707
346,286 33,157
3,041,871 3,032,645
97,827,700 100,133,509
80% 19%

80% 19%

** As of 31 December 2024, the Capital Reserve stands at TZS 51 billion (2023: TZS Nil million). This
reserve represents the net assets transferred from Letshego Tanzania Limited as a resuit of the
merger between Letshego Tanzania Limited and Letshego Bank Tanzania Limited. The merger was

conducted using the interest pooling method.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The bank’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the analysis,
evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risks
is core to the bank’s business, and the operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in
business. The bank’s aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and
minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the individual departments concerned under policies approved by
the Board of directors. These written policies cover all types of risks for the bank. The most important
types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and other operational risk. Market risk includes
foreign currency risk, interest rate and other price risks.

a) Credit risk

The bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a financial loss
to the bank by failing to pay amounts in full when due.

Credit risk is the most important risk for the bank’s business: management therefore carefully manages
the exposure to credit risk. Credit exposure arises principally in lending and investment activities. The
bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing fimits on the amount of risk accepted in
relation to one borrower, or groups of borrowers. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and
subject to regular reviews.

(i) Credit risk measurement

Exposure to credit risk is managed through systematic analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential
borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing lending limits where
appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral and corporate and

personal guarantees, but a significant portion is personal lending where no such facilities can be
obtained.

The Board of directors has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk to the CEO who
is responsible for implementing appropriate policies and procedures for credit risk monitoring. In
particular, the Financial inclusion department which is under Head of financia! inclusion is responsible
for:

(i) Formulating credit policies, covering credit assessment, risk grading, documentary and legai
procedures, collateral requirements.

(ii) Establishing the authorization structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities.
Authorization limits are allocated to various officers at different levels; credit committees, aiming to
analyse and appraise the loan request, based on the financial analysis.

Performed by the client relationship officer in charge of the loan request, are organized on a daily
basis. Lending decisions can only be taken through Credit committee.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(i) Reviewing and assessing credit risk. Financial inclusion department assesses all credit exposures
prior to facilities being committed to customers concerned.

(iv) Assessing portfolio quality according to type of customer/sector; regular reports are

{v) provided to Board of directors in respect of the quality of loan portfolio and

(vi) Promoting best practices in management of credit risk

Regufar audits of the Bank's department processes are undertaken by the Internal audit and Risk
department.

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and to banks and government securities
at a counterparty level and other, the Bank reflects three components (i) the ‘probability of default’ by
the client or counterparty on its contractual obligations; (i) current exposures to the counterparty and its
likely future development, from which the Bank derives the ‘exposure at default’; and (iii) the likely
recovery ratio on the defaulted obligations (the ‘loss given default’).

These credit risk measurements, which reflect expected loss (the ‘expected loss model’), are embedded
in the Bank’s daily operational management. The operational measurements on impairment allowances
required under IFRS 9 which is based on the expected credit losses than incurred losses at the balance
sheet date.

(i) The Bank assesses the probability of default of individual counterparties using internal rating tools
tailored to the various categories of counterparty. These have been developed internally and combine
statistical analysis with credit officer judgement. Clients of the Bank are segmented into five rating
classes. The Bank’s rating scale, which is shown below, reflects the range of default probabilities defined
for each rating class. This means that, in principle, exposures migrate between classes as the
assessment of their probability of default changes. The rating tools are kept under review and upgraded
as necessary. The Bank regularly validates the performance of the rating and their predictive power with
regard to default events.

Qualitative criteria are also considered in grading credit risk exposures.

(i) Exposure at default is based on the amounts the Bank expects to be owed at the time of default. For
example, for a loan this is the face value. For a commitment, the Bank includes any amount already
drawn plus the further amount that may have been drawn by the time of default, should it occur.

The Bank manages limits and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever they are identified and in
particular, to individual counterparties and groups, and to industries. The Bank structures the levels of
credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower,
sector segments, and to industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject
to an annual or more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the level of credit risk by
product, sector and industry are tabled to the Board of Directors for review when considered necessary.

The exposure to any one borrower, including further restricted banks is by limits stipulated in Central
Bank regulations covering on- and off-balance sheet exposures, and daily delivery risk limits in relation
to trading items. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily. Exposure to credit risk is also
managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potentiat borrowers to meet interest
and capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits where appropriate.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

a) Credit risk (Continued)
(iii) Impairment and provisioning policies

The internal rating systems focus more on credit-quality mapping from the inception of the lending. In
contrast, impairment provisions are recognized for financial reporting purposes for expected credit
losses at the balance sheet date based on objective evidence available to the bank. Due to the different
methodologies applied, the amount of expected credit losses provided for in the financial statements
using internal credit ratings are usually higher than the amount determined from the incurred credit
model that is used for banking regulation purposes.

The impairment provision shown in the statement of financial position at year-end is derived from each
of the five internal rating grades. However, the majority of the impairment provision comes from the loss,
doubtful, and substandard grades.

(iv) Expected credit loss measurement
The Banks follows a “three-stage” mode! for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial
recognition as follows:

« A financial instrument that is not credit impaired on initial recognition is classified in “Stage 1" and
has it credit risk continuously monitored by the Bank.

« If a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to “stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit impaired.

« If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to “stage 3".

« Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of
lifetime expected credit losses that result from default events possible within the next 12 months.
instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on expected credit losses on a
lifetime basis.

« A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 9 is that it should consider forward
looking information.

Significant increase in credit risk

(i) Loans and advances to customers
The Bank considers both qualitative and quantitative criteria to determine whether a loan to customers
has experienced a significant increase in credit risk.

Quantitative criteria
A financial instrument is considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk if the
borrower is more than 30 days past due on its contractual payments or in case of non-amortising
facilities, has an expired line or exposure above limit which has not been regularized for a period
exceeding 30 days.

Qualitative criteria

A financial instrument is considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk if the
borrower meets one or more of the following criteria: expectations of forbearance, covenant breaches,
affordability scores, death, unemployment, bankruptcy, divorce, drop of interest rate in mortgages and
restructuring. Backstop indicator referred to instrument which are more than 30 days past due. There
may be other backstop indicators.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

a) Credit risk (Continued)
(iv) Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

(ii) Balances due from other banks

The Bank considers both qualitative and quantitative criteria to determine whether a credit facility to
other banks has experienced a significant increase in credit risk.

Quantitative criteria

A balance with other bank is considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk if the
borrower is more than 30 days past due on its contractual payments or in case of non-amortising
facilities, has an expired line or exposure above limit which has not been regularized for a period
exceeding 30 days.

Qualitative factors
In estimating the qualitative factors, our assessment considered various components useful to support
the assessment.
« Financial Stability of the banking Sector; Sector is stable given comprehensive guidelines and
strict oversight of the Bank of Tanzania.

» Recoverability: Banks that experienced liquidity and other regulatory challenges opted for merger
and acquisition strategy to safeguard interest of depositors.

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets
Loans and advances to banks

Quantitative factors

The default in this case is considered when a counterparty bank fails to honor contractual obligation and
official instructions to repay or transfer cash and cash equivalent, on behalf of Letshego for more than
30 days.

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

Letshego's default definition across all subsidiaries is set at more than 90 days past due.

“Default” is not defined under IFRS 9. Careful consideration was taken when defining default as this will
be used for the calculation of PDs, LGDs and EADs, hence impacting Letshego's ECL results.
Indications of inability to pay include;

« The credit obligation is placed on non-accrued status;

« Letshego makes a specific provision or charge-off due to a determination that the obligor's credit
quality has declined (subsequent fo taking on the exposure);

o Letshego sells the credit obligation or receivable at a material credit related economic loss;

o Letshego agrees to a distressed restructuring resulting in a material credit related diminished asset
stemming from such actions as material forgiveness or postponement of payments or repayments
of amount owing;

« Letshego has filed for the obligor's bankruptcy in connection with the credit obtigation

« The obligor has sought or been placed in bankruptcy resulting in the delay or avoidance of the credit
obligation’s repayment.

e There is a rebuttable presumption within the standard that default does occur once a loan is more
than 90 days past due.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
a) Credit risk (Continued)
(iv) Expected credit loss measurement {Continued)

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (Continued)

Backstop criteria
Accounts that are 30 calendar days or more past due. The 30 days past due criteria should be treated
as a backstop rather than a primary driver of moving exposures into stage 2.

Exposures will move back to stage 1 once they no longer meet the criteria for a significant increase in
credit risk and when any cure criteria used for credit risk management are met. This is subject to all
payments being up to date and the customer evidencing ability and willingness to maintain future
payments.

Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured on either a 12-month (12M) or Lifetime basis depending
on whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset
is considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the Probability
of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD), and Loss Given Default (LGD), defined as follows:

Definition of default, impaired and cure

The Bank considers a financial instrument defaulted for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower
becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments. The Bank considers treasury and interbank
balances defaulted and takes immediate action when the required intraday payments are not settled by
the close of business as outlined in the individual agreements.

It is the Bank’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage
3 when none of the default criteria have been present for at least six consecutive months. The decision
whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade, at
the time of the cure, and whether this indicates there has been a significant increase in credit risk
compared to initial recognition.

Loans and advances to customers

e The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per
“Definition of default and credit-impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (12M PD), or over
the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

« Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the Banks’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted
exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral
or other credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of
default (EAD). LGD is calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the
percentage of loss expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months and Lifetime
LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made if the default occurs over the remaining expected
lifetime of the loan. The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors which
impact the recoveries made post default.

« EAD is calculated by considering outstanding balance of loan plus interest receivable excluding
upfront fee recovered initially in disbursement. Interest from all defaulted loans (over 90 days) is
suspended from accrued interest income.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
a) Credit risk (Continued)
(iv) Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

Balances due from other banks

« The ECL model for interbank placements is built on key variables Exposure at Default (EAD), Loss
Given Default (LGD) and Probability of default (PD)

o The PD refers to the likelihood of a default over a time horizon. It provides an estimate of the
likelihood that a borrower will be unable to meet its debt obligations. PD for counterparties are
assessed under the framework of external rating of the counter parties.

» The EAD defined as gross exposure in the event of obligor default over the next 12 months (12M
EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD). The bank assesses EAD at each dealffacility
level. EAD is equivalent to the existing outstanding balance (including interest accrued at the
reporting date).

« The LGD, this refers to the share of an asset that is lost if a borrower default. LGD for interbank
investment is computed based on recovery rate that is assessed based on historical recovery
experience of counterparties’ experience in the market.

Forward-looking information

The estimates of expected credit losses to reflect reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort — including information about: past events, current conditions,
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

« Information that is available for financial reporting purposes is considered to be available without
undue cost or effort. The information should include factors that are specific to the borrower and
general economic conditions, including assessment of both the current conditions and the forecast
direction of the change of conditions.

The policy stipulates in appendix below how the macro-economic factors were engraved in relation

to impairment for the past 2 years through regression analysis to establish the degree of correlation

to the following potential data sources: internal historical credit loss experience, internal and external
ratings, credit loss experience of other entities, or external reports and statistics.

e As the forecast horizon increases the availability of detailed information decreases, and the
judgement required to estimate expected credit losses increases. For periods far in the future,
projections could be extrapolated from the information that is available for earlier periods.

« Macro-economic factors incorporated before statistical test include, exchange rate, inflation rate, TB

bills, fuel prices, total credit to GDP, non-government sector to GDP, GDP per capital current price

(TZS), Money supply, (M3) and food price.

The predictive model considers macro-economic factors which have correlation of more than 40%

in trend of 5 years.

« The predictive model considers economic significance factor which have correction of more than 1
T statistic.

« Management using regression analysis for establishing the relationship between macro-economic
factors and monthly impairment. The statistical relationship test establishes the economic
significant, statistically significant, R square, Adjusted R square, T statistics and P value

« Macro-economic adjustment to be adjusted is only when proved there is a factor which is going to
change based on the proved facts presented either from economist, government budget and policy
changes, continued trade deficit and tumour economic war which might adversely disrupt the current
conditions.

« If the change in macroeconomic factors will remain below the 20% of the move all the PD’s will be
adjusted to align to the Macroeconomic factors in context of the provision at the reporting date. If
the change remained below the predetermined provision, management adopt the existing provisions
without adjustments.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

a) Credit risk (Continued)
(iv) Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

Forward-looking information (Continued)

Forward-looking information is reviewed by the credit committee and submitted quarterly to the central
pank for review as part of the credit returns to be made to the bank. The model is back tested against
actual outcomes. Within its risk management framework, the Bank has introduced various measures to
limit its economic losses arising from prepayment risk.

Renegotiated loans treatment

Both performing and non-performing restructured assets are classified as stage 3 except where itis
established that the concession granted has not resulted in diminished financial obligation and that no
other regulatory definitions of default criteria have been triggered, in which case the asset is classified
as stage 2. The minimum probationary period is 6 months to move to cure state.

Write-off policy

Loans shall be written off only when reaching above 720 days past due. This determination is reached
after considering information such as the occurrence of significant changes in the borrower’s financial
position such that the borrower can no longer pay the obligation or that proceeds from collateral will not
be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure.

Loss allowance
The loss allowance recognized in the period is impacted by a variety of factors, as described below:

« Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due to financial instruments experiencing significant
increases (or decreases) of credit risk or becoming credit-impaired in the period, and the consequent
“step up” (or “step down”) between 12-month and Lifetime ECL;

« Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognised during the period, as well as
releases for financial instruments de-recognised in the period;

o Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs, EADs and LGDs in the period, arising

from regular refreshing of inputs to models;

Impacts on the measurement of ECL due to changes made to models and assumptions;

Discounts unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL is measured on a present value

basis;

Foreign exchange retranslations for assets denominated in foreign currencies and other

movements; and

Financial assets derecognised during the period and write-offs of allowances related to assets that

were written off during the period.

[
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

a) Credit risk (Continued)

{iv) Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

ECL allowance reconciliation:

Stage | Stage Stage Il Total
| Lifetime i g
12 - Month ECL ECL Lifetime ECL
TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS '000 TZS'000
At 1 January 2024 737,871 296,298 14,230,129 15,264,299
Stage transfer
Stage 1 to stage 2 (309,749) 309,749 - -
Stage 1 to stage 3
Stage 2 to stage 3 - (412,693) 412,693 -
Stage 2 to stage 1 1,462 (1,462) -
Stage 3 to stage 1 2,288 (2,288) -
Stage 3 to stage 2 - 5,880 (5,880) -
Allowance on new loan and (522,364)  (840,579) 5294407  3,931,463.76
advance
Write off - - (11,572,452) (11,572,452)
De-recognized during the year - - - 3,709,524_ 3,709,524_
At 31 December 2024 (90,492) (642,806) 12,066,133 11,332,835
The entity did not have off-balance sheet exposure as of 31 December 2024.
Stage | Stage 1l Stage i
12-MonthECL  -felTE  Lifetime ECL Total
TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS '000 TZS'000
At 1 January 2023 2,012,616 455,108 4,096,700 6,564,424
Stage transfer:
Stage 1 to stage 2 - - - -
Stage 1 to stage 3 - - - -
Stage 2 to stage 3 - 257,738 (257,738) -
Stage 2 to stage 1 210,140  (210,140) -
Stage 3 to stage 1 1,287,222 - (1,287,223) -
Stage 3 to stage 2 - - - -
Allowance on new loan and (2,772,107) (206,408) 7,900,149 4,921,634
advance
Write off* - (1,376,065) (1,376,065)
De-recognized during the year - 5,154,307 5,154,307
At 31 December 2023 737,871 296,298 14,230,130 15,264,300

The entity did not have off-balance sheet exposure as of 31 December 2023.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

a) Credit risk (Continued)

(v) Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

Financial instruments whose carrying amounts represent the maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements are shown below:

2024 2023
TZS'000 % TZS’000 %
Balances with Bank of Tanzania 1,414,458 1% 1,962,523 2%
Balances due from other banks 24,891,042 24% 14,386,720 16%
Loans and advances to customers 76,490,429 73% 69,617,299 75%
Other assets (Excluding prepayments) 2,220,141 2% 6,356,300 7%
105,016,070 100% 92,322,843 100%

The table below show the profile of the loans and advances to customers analyzed according to the

internal ratings grading system.

Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
12 - Month Lifetime . }
31 December 2024 ECL ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Current 76,369,143 - - 76,369,143
Especially mentioned - 1,415,721 - 1,415,721
Substandard - - 1,134,493 1,134,493
Doubtful - - 1,914,706 1,914,706
Loss - - 6,989,200 6,989,200
Gross carrying 76,369,143 1,415,721 10,038,399 87,823,263
amount
ECL allowance (1,260,235) (1,136,877) (8,935,722) (11,332,834)
Net loans and 75,108,908 278,844 1,102,677 76,490,429
advances - ] )
Stage | Stage Il Stage |l
31 December 2023: 12 - Montn Lifetime L itetime ECL Total
_ ~TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS'000
Current 66,477,052 - - 66,477,052
Especially mentioned - 1,945,443 - 1,945,443
Substandard - - 752,129 752,129
Doubtful - - 2,185,548 2,185,548
Loss = - - 13,521,425 13,521,425
Gross carrying amount 66,477,052 1,945,443 16,459,103 84,881,598
ECL allowance (737,871) (296,298)  (14,230,129) (1 5,264,298)
Net loans and advances 65,739,181 1,649,145 2,228,974 69,617,299

The bank does quarterly stress tests to consider various market scenarios for the credit loss provisions.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

a) Credit risk (Continued)
(v) Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

The meaning of the classifications has been explained below

Number of days Past Due Classification

0-30 Current

31-60 Especially Mentioned
61-90 Substandard

91-180 Doubtful

180 or more Loss

Loans and advances that are past due but not impaired.

Loans and advances that are ‘past due but not impaired’ are those for which contractual interest or
principal payments are past due, but the Bank believes that no objective evidence of impairment both
qualitatively and quantitatively exists for impairment assessment to be conducted. The table below shows
the aging of assets that are past due at the reporting date but not impaired, per class of financial assets,
the financial assets excluded here are not past due nor impaired:

Less than 31to 60 61 to 90

Ageing analysis 30 days days days Total
31 December 2024 TZS ‘000 TZS ‘000 TZS ‘000  TZS ‘000
Loans and advances to customers 75,737,010 1,397,950 1,134,493 78,269,453

31 December 2023
Loans and advances to customers 65,573,896 1,729,242 522,207 67,825,345

Forward-looking factors have been considered in addition to historical loss rates" and the impairment on
these items were concluded to be immaterial as technically under IFRS 9.

Collateral held

The bank closely monitors coliateral held for financial assets considered to be credit impaired, as it
becomes likely that the bank will take possession of collateral to mitigate potential credit losses. In 2023,
unperfected collaterals did not form part of the LGD computations pending registration of unregistered
collaterals.

31 December 2024 Gross exposure Impairment Carrying

allowance amount

TZS'000' TZS'000' TZS'000'

Substandard 752,129 289,140 462,989

Doubtful 2,185,548 864,621 1,320,927

Loss 13,521,425 12,833,718 687,707
Total 16,459,102 13,987,479 2,471,623
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
a) Credit risk (Continued)
(v) Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

Collateral held (Continued)

31 December 2023 Gross exposure impaimmnsnt Carrying
allowance amount

TZS'000' TZS'000' TZS'000'

Substandard 752,129 289,140 462,989
Doubtfui 2,185,548 864,621 1,320,927
Loss _ 13,521,425 12,833,718 687,707
Total 16,459,103 13,987,479 2,471,623

The bank maintains banking relationships with local banks which are of good reputation and regulated
by the Bank of Tanzania, hence none of the balances are past due nor impaired.

While collateral is an important mitigant to credit risk, the Bank’s underwriting policy ensures that

loans are strictly granted on a going concern basis with adequat

e demonstration of repayment

capacity. Other than exposures that are unsecure, all other facilities are secured by collateral in the
form of charges over cash, land and buildings, marketable securities, plant and machinery, amongst

other.

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure (By Geography):

31 December 2024:

Financial Assets

Balances with Bank of Tanzania

Balances with other banks

Loans and advances to customers(net)
Other asset {excluding non-financial assets)
Total financial assets

31 December 2023:

Financial Assets

Balances with Bank of Tanzania

Balances with other banks

Loans and advances to customers(net)
Other asset {(excluding non-financial assets)
Total financial assets
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Tanzania Total
TZS'000 TZS'000
1,414,458 1,414,458
24,891,042 18,698,214
76,490,429 76,490,429
2,220,141 2,206,535
105,016,070 105,002,464
Tanzania Total
TZS'000 TZS'000
1,962,523 1,962,523
14,386,720 14,386,720
69,617,299 69,617,299
6,664,879 6,664,879
92,631,422 92,631,422
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its
financial liabilities as they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn.

The bank sets up a liquidity management framework likely to fund increases in assets and meet
obligations as they come due, without incurring unacceptable losses. The bank enforces proper
liquidity management to be in the capacity to address daily liquidity requirements and resist to a
period of liquidity stress. For Letshego Faidika Bank Ltd to maintain at any time a sufficient cushion
of liquid assets, the bank defines and implements a strong liquidity policy to address its obligations
and support the development of the bank activities and the possible changes in the mix of assets or
the funding structure.

The bank defines the prudential framework to comply at any time with the Bank of Tanzania
regulations and set up the internal limits necessary to always being in the capacity to meet its
obligations and resist to crisis situations.

The finance department monitors on a regular basis a set of indicators and ratio likely to detect any
downward of the liquidity level and anticipate any exceeding of the limits. The bank’s management
reports quarterly to the Board on Asset Liability Management (ALM).

Non-derivative cash flows

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Bank under non-derivative financial liabilities
by remaining confractual maturities at the balance sheet date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, as the Bank manages the inherent liquidity risk based
on un-discounted cash inflows according to how the bank monitors liquidity.

Assets held for managing liquidity risk

The bank holds a diversified portfolio of cash and high-quality liquid securities to support payment
obligations and contingent funding in a stressed market environment. The Bank’s assets held for
managing liquidity risk comprise:

« Cash and balances with the Bank of Tanzania (excluding SMR);
e Balances with other banks and
¢ Loans and advances {o customers;

In the normal course of business, a proportion of customer ioans contractually repayable within one

year will be extended. The bank would also be able to meet unexpected net cash outflows and
accessing additional funding sources from the parent company and other lenders.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

31.
c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, which include foreign currency exchange rates
and interest rates, will affect the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument. Market risk
arises from open positions in interest rates and foreign currencies, both of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable limits,
while optimising the return on risk. Management is responsible for the development of detailed risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by Board) and for the day-to-day
implementation of those policies.

Market risk measurement techniques

The objective of market risk measurement is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable limits while optimising the return on risk. The principal measurement technique used to
measure and control market risk is the stress tests as outlined below.

Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of losses that could arise in extreme
conditions. Below are the results of stress test in relation to interest rate and foreign exchange risk
as at 31 December 2024.

Interest rate risk - stress test

An increase in interest rates will have a negative impact on net interest income and vice versa is
true, in total a decrease in interest rates by 1%,2% and 5% respectively will leads to a decrease in
Net Interest Income (NII) by TZS 71 million,142.16 million and 355 million respectively over the 12-
month time horizon. CAR will decrease by 0.08%,0.17%, and 0.42% respectively. and the increase
in interest rate by 1% will have the opposite direction respectively.

Foreign exchange risk - stress test

The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency
exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets limits on the level of
exposure by currency and in aggregate for both overnight and intra-day positions, which are
monitored daily. The Bank’s assets are typically funded in the same currency as that of the business
transacted to eliminate foreign exchange exposure. However, the Bank maintains an open position
within the tolerance limits approved by the Board within the Bank of Tanzania prescriptions.

The Bank has considered the annual official rates published by the Bank of Tanzania for the last
five years including and up-to November 2024 which ranged between 2.5% to 8.5% with an
average of 6.5%. The Bank has therefore considered to use 5% appreciation/depreciation in
deriving the sensitivity analysis to foreign exchange rate changes. The same rate has used in the
sensitivity analysis of the prior year.

Below is the estimated impact of 5% increase or decrease in value of the Tanzania Shilling against
the major currency which is US Dollar and Euro with all other variables held constant, to the profit
before tax.

2024 2023
Impact on Financial statements - USD TZS’000 TZS’000
Profit before tax +/- 28,806 2,713
Equity before tax +/- 20,164 1,899
Impact on Financial statements - EUR
Profit before tax +/- 107 120
Equity before tax +/- 75 84
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

c) Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk

The establishment of foreign currency positions for speculative purposes is not permitted. As a

result, currency risk is very limited.

The table below summarises the bank’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31
December 2024 and 2023. Included in the table are the bank’s financial instruments, categorised
by currency (all amounts expressed in Tanzanian Shillings):

Foreign currency exchange risk exposure

At 31 December 2024

Financial assets

Cash and balances from Bank of Tanzania

Balance due from other banks

Financial liabilities
Customer deposits
Borrowings

Net financial position

At 31 December 2023

Financial assets
Cash and balances from Bank of Tanzania
Balance due from other banks

Financial liabilities
Customer deposits
Borrowings

Net financial position
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usD Euro Total

TZS'000  TZS'000 TZS'000
285,374 - 285,374
290,754 2,131 292,885
576,128 2,131 578,259
576,128 2,131 578,259
24,326 - 24,326
29,925 2,409 32,334
54,251 2,409 56,659
54,251 2,409 56,659




LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
¢) Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The position regarding interest rate risk is monitored by the bank’s Finance department. In addition, the
bank reports its positions to the holding bank on a quarterly basis.

Nevertheless, the Bank considers the risk to be limited. The interest rate margin still serves as a
reasonable buffer, to absorb some degree of shock in interest rates.

Potential losses based on extraordinary or rare changes in the yield curve are considered in the overall
process of guiding the bank’s operations. At the same time, we are aware that the Euro or US Dollar
interest rates frequently used as benchmarks (Euroibor, Libor, Swap or US Treasury interest rate
curves) have a limited impact on our business with customers.

The Bank has considered the annual official rates published by the Bank of Tanzania for the last two
years including and up to November 2024 which ranged between 5% to 8.5% with an average of 7.5%.
The Bank has therefore considered to use 5% appreciation/depreciation in deriving the sensitivity
analysis to the interest rate changes. The same rate has used in the sensitivity analysis of the prior year.

The table below summarizes the bank’s exposure to interest rate risks. Included in the table are the
bank’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual repricing or
maturity dates. The bank does not bear an interest rate risk on off balance sheet items. All figures are
in Tanzanian Shillings.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

d) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated
with the bank’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure and from external factors other
than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements
and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all the
bank’s operations and are faced by all departments.

The bank’s objective is to manage operational risk to balance the avoidance of financial losses and
damage to the bank’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures
that restrict initiative.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address
operational risk is assigned to head of each department and overseen by the board of directors. in
particular, standards for the management of operational risk are developed in the following areas:

Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization of
transactions.

¢ Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization
of transactions.

Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions.

Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements.

Documentation of policies, procedures and controls.

Development of contingency plans.

Training and professional development.

Ethical and business standards; and

Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

o & & & o o o

32. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NOT MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

The Bank considers that the carrying amounts of all classes of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at amortized cost approximate their fair values since most of these instruments
are short term and carry interest rates which are near existing market rates, then fair value would
not significantly differ from amortised cost.

33. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal claims

Litigation is a common occurrence in the banking industry due to the nature of the business
undertaken. The bank has formal controls and policies for managing legal claims. Once
professional advice has been obtained and the amount of loss reasonably estimated, the bank
adjusts (Provisions) to account for any adverse effects which the claims may have on its financial
standing. There are no contingent liabilities or assets that arise from legal claims during the period.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Parties are related if one party can control the other party or exercise significant influence over the
other party in making either financial or operational decisions. The controlling and ultimate holding

company is Letshego Holding Company.

In the normal course of business, several banking transactions are entered into with related
parties’ i.e. key management staff, Directors, their associates and companies associated with
Directors. These include loans and deposits. Loans and advances to customers as at 31
December include loans and advances to Directors and other key management personnel.

Loans to key management personnel were issued at an off-market interest rate as per the Bank’s
policy and repayable on demand. They are treated as employee benefits like other staff loans. The

foliowing transactions were carried out with related parties:

(a) Balances with related parties

) Bal ith G ¢ ] 2024 2023
(i) alances with Group Companies T25°000 TZS'000
Balances due to group companies
Letshego Africa Holdings Limited 8,699,170 8,594,944
Letshego Tanzania Limited - 71,716,643
8,699,170 80,311,587
(ii) Balances due from group companies
Letshego Tanzania Limited - 19,979,787
b) Deposits and loans and advances with related parties
Loans
Directors 144,917 145,607
Key management personnel 940,435 937,507
1,085,352 1,083,114
Movement in loans to key management personnel during the year is as follows:
At 1 January 741,853 216,011
Loans issued during the year 483,053 960,043
Loans repayments during the year (284,471) (238,547)
At 31 December 940,435 937,507
Deposits
Directors 48,171 96,620
Senior management 59,075 14,481
107,246 111,101
{(c) Senior management compensation
Short term benefits to senior management - 559,177
Directors’ emoluments 211,815 272,526
211,815 831,703
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

35. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There were no events after the reporting period which require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial
statements.

36. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

Letshego Africa Holdings Limited is the ultimate holding Company, a company incorporated in
Botswana.

37. MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analyzed according to when they are
expected to be recovered or settled. Trading assets and liabilities including derivatives have been
classified to mature and/or be repaid within 12 months, regardless of the actual contractual maturities
of the products. Regarding loans and advances to customers, the Bank uses the same basis of
expected repayment behaviour that was used for estimating the EIR. Issued debt reflects the
contractual coupon amortization.

Within After
At 31 December 2024 12 months 12 months Total
In TZS Thousands
Cash and balances with 1,414,458 - 1,414,458
Bank of Tanzania
Balance with other Banks 24,891,042 - 24,891,042
Loans and advances to - 76,490,429 76,490,429
customer
Other assets 2,824,481 - 2,824,481
Right-of-use asset - 1,694,902 1,694,902
Property and equipment - 322,364 322,364
Leasehold improvements - 565,899 565,899
Total assets 29,129,981 79,073,594 108,203,576
Customer Deposits 10,133,692 - 10,133,692
Provision 241,711 - 241,711
Other liabilities 7,037,154 - 7,037,154
Lease liability - 1,616,435 1,616,435
Amount due to related - 8,699,170 8,699,170
parties
Corporate tax payable 31,299 - 31,299
Total liabilities 17,443,856 10,315,605 27,759,461
Net position 11,686,125 68,757,989 80,444,115
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

38. MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

Within After

At 31 December 2023 12 months 12 months ~ Total
In TZS Thousands

Cash and balances with Bank of 1,962,523 1,962,523
Tanzania

Balance with other Banks 14,386,720 14,386,720
Loans and advances to customer 6,491,428 63,125,871 69,617,299
Other assets 6,664,879 6,664,879
Right-of-use asset 360,351 625,792
Property and equipment 976,504 976,504
Leasehold improvements 465,450 465,450
Amount due from related parties 19,979,787 19,979,787
Taxation 5,816 5,816
Total assets 29,505,550 84,913,779 114,419,330
Customer Deposits 9,904,635 9,904,635
Provision 365,142 365,142
Other liabilities 2,157,885 2,157,885
Lease liability 360,409 - 360,409
Amount due to related parties 80,311,587 80,311,587
Total liabilities 12,788,071 80,311,587 93,099,658
Net position 16,717,479 4,602,192 21,319,672

39. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON CONTROL

This merger of the two businesses is considered a business combination under common control as

both entities were owned before and after the merger by the same shareholders.

The Bank has adopted the predecessor accounting policy choice for presentation and preparation of

the financial statements. Under the predecessor accounting:

- Assets and liabilities of Letshego bank Tanzania Limited (LBTL), now known as Letshego Faidika
bank Tanzania Limited are stated at predecessor values.

- The difference between the consideration and the net assets transferred is included in equity as
capital reserve.

- The results of Letshego Tanzania Limited (LTL) and the balance sheet are incorporated
prospectively from the compietion date, and comparatives have not been restated.

The following table summarizes the carrying value of assets transferred and liabilities assumed upon
final determination of final values during 2024.
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LETSHEGO FAIDIKA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

39. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON CONTROL (Continued)

Amount
Assets TZS
Property and equipment 1,654,225,374
Right of use 265,615,357
Loans receivables 60,820,311,106
Other receivables 2,106,154,740
Due to a related party 4,615,735,728
Cash and Bank 5,219,158,826

74,581,201,131

Liabilities
Lease liabilities 312,146,783
Personnel-related payables 1,072,731,021
Other payables 2,683,972,637
4,068,850,440
Net Assets transferred 70,512,350,690
Less: Paid consideration (Intercompany balance receivable from LTL) (19,979,786,680)
Total value of net assets transferred 50,532,564,009
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